
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 P.M. – EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
REGULAR MEETING July 24, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor Kale Booher, Lifepoint 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on June 26, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
   
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree 
Commission meeting held May 23, 2017. 

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting held May 24, 2017. 

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Civil Service 
Commission meeting held May 3, 2017.  

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission 
meeting held June 7, 2017.   

E. Resolution No. 17-42, a resolution appointing members to the 
Delaware Northern New Community Authority and Delaware South 
New Community Authority, and specifying the term of the 
appointments.  

F. Resolution No. 17-43, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
prepare and submit an application to participate in the Ohio Public 
Works Commission (OPWC) Local Transportation Improvements 
(LTIP) Grant Program (Round 32), and to execute contracts as 
required for the Winter Street and North Union Street resurfacing 



2 
 

and Winter Street Bridge Rehabilitation Project.  
G. Resolution No 17-44, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

enter into a cooperation agreement with Delaware County for an 
application to the Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) for the 
Winter Street and North Union Street resurfacing and Winter 
Street Bridge  Rehabilitation Project (Round 32 Application).  

H. Resolution No. 17-45, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
submit an application for technical assistance through the Mid-
Ohio Regional Planning Commission Insight2050 Technical 
Assistance Program.   

I. Establish August 14, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing for Ordinance No. 17-54, an ordinance for Treplus 
Communities for approval of a Rezoning Amendment from B-3 
(Community Business District) to B-3 PMU (Community Business 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak 
Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 
acres located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield 
Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision and 
Ordinance No. 17-55, an ordinance for Treplus Communities for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons 
containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres 
located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping 
Center and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision.  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8 PRESENTATION 

A. Proclamation recognizing Warren Rose III for achieving the rank of 
Eagle Scout through the Boy Scouts of America 

B. Proclamation recognizing Erik Boeriu and Citizens for the Fourth 
for their efforts organizing the Fourth of July Parade 

C. Delaware General Health District Update – Shelia Hiddleson, 
Health Commissioner 

D. A Market Based Plan for Climate Change – Marianne Gabel, 
Citizens’ Climate Lobby 

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMITS 

A. Greater Gouda LLC, DBA Greater Gouda, 12 N Sandusky St., 
Delaware, OH 43015. Permit Class: C2 

 
10. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC DISCUSSION regarding a Designated Outdoor 



3 
 

Refreshment Area (DORA)  
 
11.  CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-46, a resolution adopting the 

renaming of Eastside Park to Bennett Park.  
 
12. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-47, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to sign and enter into an intergovernmental agreement 
with the Delaware County Commissioners for indigent defense services 
for Municipal Code violations.   

 
13.  CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-48, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into a partnering agreement with the Mid-Ohio 
Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) for the Point Railroad Bridge 
Replacement Project, DEL-36-11.03. 

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-49, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into a partnering agreement with the Mid-Ohio 
Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) for the Citywide Signals 
Upgrade Project Phase 1.  

 
15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-50, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for 
Land Development-Engineering Professional Services, and declaring an 
emergency.   

 
16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-51, an ordinance approving the 

sale of a Solid Waste Department 2006 International Recycling Truck 
that has outgrown its useful serviceable life.  

 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-52, an ordinance to authorize and 

direct the City Manager to execute and sign a petition on behalf of the 
City of Delaware, Ohio, as the “Proximate City” within the meaning of 
Section 349.01 (M) of the Ohio Revised Code, to add property to the 
Berkshire Landing New Community Authority under Chapter 349 of the 
Ohio Revised Code, and declaring an emergency.  

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-53, an ordinance approving a 

Community Reinvestment Area Agreement and School Compensation 
Agreement with 2nd Half Ventures, LLC, Delaware City Schools, Delaware 
Area Career Center and the City of Delaware for investment in real 
property improvements on parcel 519-432-25-022-000 and declaring an 
emergency.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-54, an ordinance for Treplus 



4 
 

Communities for approval of a Rezoning Amendment from B-3 
(Community Business District) to B-3 PMU (Community Business 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak 
Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres 
located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center 
and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-55, an ordinance for Treplus 

Communities for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak 
Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres 
located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center 
and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision. 

 
21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-56, an ordinance for Treplus 

Communities for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Burr 
Oak Commons containing 92 apartments units on approximately 20.06 
acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 just 
west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision.  

 
22. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
23. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
24. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
25. ADJOURNMENT 







































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-42 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE DELAWARE NORTHERN 
NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY AND DELAWARE SOUTH NEW COMMUNITY 
AUTHORITY, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Letters of Interest 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-42 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
DELAWARE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY 
AND DELAWARE SOUTH NEW COMMUNITY 
AUTHORITY, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE 
APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, appointments may be renewed for additional two year terms 

pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 349.04; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.   The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Delaware Northern New Community Authority – Mike Hite- local 

Government appointee (term ending August 31, 2019) 
2. Delaware Northern New Community Authority – Kay Hester – citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2018) 
3. Delaware Northern New Community Authority – David Miller - citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2019) 
4. Delaware Northern New Community Authority – Diane Nutter - citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2018) 
5. Delaware South New Community Authority – Bill Rogers - citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2018) 
6. Delaware South New Community Authority – Jim Hill - citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2018) 
7. Delaware South New Community Authority  - Benjamin Kelly - citizen 

appointee (term ending August 31, 2019) 
8. Delaware South New Community Authority – Jennifer Knittle - local 

government appointee (term ending August 31, 2019) 
 
SECTION 2.    Upon expiration of the terms listed above, the appointments 
shall continue until Council either appoints the member to a new term or 
appoints a replacement. 



 
SECTION 3.    The following appointments were made to the Delaware 
Northern New Community Authority by the Developer as stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 07-103.  
 
1. Tim Todora – Zaremba Group (term ending August 31, 2019)   
2. Gary Hough - Zaremba Group (term ending August 31, 2018) 
3. Todd Hamula - Zaremba Group (term ending August 31, 2019) 
 
SECTION 4.   The following appointments were made to the Delaware South 
New Community Authority by the Developer as stipulated in Resolution No. 
07-105. 
 
1. Matt Callahan – Pulte Group  (term ending August 31, 2019)   
2. Randy Palmer – Kontogiannis & Associates (term ending August 31,   

   2019) 
 
SECTION 4.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-43 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PREPARE AND 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMISSION (OPWC) LOCAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS (LTIP) 
GRANT PROGRAM (ROUND 32), AND TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS AS 
REQUIRED FOR THE WINTER STREET AND NORTH UNION STREET 
RESURFACING AND WINTER STREET BRIDGE REHABILITATION PROJECT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The streets to be resurfaced and rehabilitated as part of this project are North 
Union Street and Winter Street; additionally repairs will be made to the Winter 
Street Bridge over the Olentangy River. 
 
North Union Street is a north/south local street with a pavement rating of ‘D+’ 
If North Union Street is not resurfaced in the next year or two it, it is expected 
that it will deteriorate to a point where a simple resurfacing treatment will be 
insufficient to extend the life of the road and a major reconstruction will be 
needed.  North Union was last resurfaced in 2000. It has a total ADT of 3,577 
vehicles composed of 90 trucks and 3,487 cars and bikes. The treatment being 
proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing Membrane Interlayer 
(SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
East Winter Street is an east/west collector street with a pavement rating of ‘C’. 
The asphalt surface course has reached the end of its useful life indicating that 



a resurfacing is warranted. It was last resurfaced in 2001. E. Winter Street will 
be resurfaced from Franklin Street to Central Avenue. E. Winter Street has a 
total ADT load of 2,588 vehicles with 2,550 cars and bikes and 38 trucks. The 
treatment being proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing 
Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
North Union Street and Winter Street also have high volume of pedestrian 
traffic that must traverse uneven walks and potholes located in crosswalks.  
The selected treatment will provide a smooth and safe wearing surface for 
vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists.  This treatment will also help to delay 
further base asphalt deterioration.   
 
The Winter Street Bridge (SFN: 2160072) is a concrete deck and steel beam 
bridge with stacked stone abutments that was constructed in 1915. As of 2016 
it has Bridge Rating of 6 (Satisfactory). The repairs to the bridge are replacing 
missing stones in the west abutment with concrete, remove and replaced 
deteriorated portions of the concrete approach slabs, and replacing sections of 
deteriorated sidewalk.  
 
Lastly, the signalized intersection at Union Street & Central Avenue (SR 37) 
and the signalized intersection at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will be 
refurbished as part of this project in order to enhance safety and provide better 
visibility of the vehicular heads. The refurbishment will include the 
replacement of signal heads, wiring, and other aging signal components and 
hardware 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Passage of this Resolution authorizes the City Manager to apply for grant 
funding in the amount of $450,000 from OPWC.  If grant funding is awarded, 
this Resolution also allows the City Manager to sign a formal OPWC Project 
Agreement (in July of 2018).  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works Committee was cancelled for July and will not meet again 
until October. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The total project cost is currently estimated at $920,322. Submitting a 
complete application requires budgeting sufficient funding to cover the City’s 
contribution to the project, currently estimated at $470,322.  Depending on 
how the city funds its estimated local contribution of $6.1 million for the Point 
Project over the next 6 years, resurfacing projects like this which require a local 
match may not be possible during that period.  This underscore the critical 
need to secure more funding partners for the Point Project and to identify new 
funding sources.   
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Winter Street and North Union Street Resurfacing Exhibit 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-43 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION (OPWC) LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS (LTIP) 
GRANT PROGRAM (ROUND 32), AND TO 
EXECUTE CONTRACTS AS REQUIRED FOR 
THE WINTER STREET AND NORTH UNION 
STREET RESURFACING AND WINTER STREET 
BRIDGE REHABILITATION PROJECT.  

 
WHEREAS, the Local Transportation Improvements Program 

provides financial assistance to political subdivisions for capital 
improvements to public infrastructure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve the pavement 

condition by performing pavement resurfacing and rehabilitation 
operations to Winter Street and Union Street; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve the bridge 

condition by performing abutment and approach repairs and 
rehabilitation operations to Winter Street Bridge; and 

 
WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements herein above 

described is considered to be a priority need for the community and is a 
qualified project under the OPWC program. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to submit an 
application to the Ohio Public Works Commission for LTIP Program 
Grant Funds, (Round 32) for the construction of pavement resurfacing 
and rehabilitation improvements to Liberty Road. 
 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is further authorized to enter into 
any agreement as may be necessary and appropriate to obtaining this 
financial assistance and contracting the work to be performed.  
 

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall be in force and effect 
immediately upon its passage. 

 
 

  PASSED:_________________________, 2017 ACCEPT____ REJECT____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 



 
  ATTEST:_____________________________    ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 

 
 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM G DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-44 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH DELAWARE COUNTY FOR AN 
APPLICATION TO THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION (OPWC) FOR  THE 
WINTER STREET & NORTH UNION STREET RESURFACING AND WINTER 
STREET BRIDGE REHABILITATION PROJECT (ROUND 32 APPLICATION). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The streets to be resurfaced and rehabilitated as part of this project are North 
Union Street and Winter Street; additionally repairs will be made to the Winter 
Street Bridge over the Olentangy River. 
 
North Union Street is a north/south local street with a pavement rating of ‘D+’ 
If North Union Street is not resurfaced in the next year or two it, it is expected 
that it will deteriorate to a point where a simple resurfacing treatment will be 
insufficient to extend the life of the road and a major reconstruction will be 
needed.  North Union was last resurfaced in 2000. It has a total ADT of 3,577 
vehicles composed of 90 trucks and 3,487 cars and bikes. The treatment being 
proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing Membrane Interlayer 
(SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
East Winter Street is an east/west collector street with a pavement rating of ‘C’. 
The asphalt surface course has reached the end of its useful life indicating that 
a resurfacing is warranted. It was last resurfaced in 2001. E. Winter Street will 



be resurfaced from Franklin Street to Central Avenue. E. Winter Street has a 
total ADT load of 2,588 vehicles with 2,550 cars and bikes and 38 trucks. The 
treatment being proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing 
Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
North Union Street and Winter Street also have high volume of pedestrian 
traffic that must traverse uneven walks and potholes located in crosswalks.  
The selected treatment will provide a smooth and safe wearing surface for 
vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists.  This treatment will also help to delay 
further base asphalt deterioration.   
 
The Winter Street Bridge (SFN: 2160072) is a concrete deck and steel beam 
bridge with stacked stone abutments that was constructed in 1915. As of 2016 
it has Bridge Rating of 6 (Satisfactory). The repairs to the bridge are replacing 
missing stones in the west abutment with concrete, remove and replaced 
deteriorated portions of the concrete approach slabs, and replacing sections of 
deteriorated sidewalk.  
 
Lastly, the signalized intersection at Union Street & Central Avenue (SR 37) 
and the signalized intersection at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will be 
refurbished as part of this project in order to enhance safety and provide better 
visibility of the vehicular heads. The refurbishment will include the 
replacement of signal heads, wiring, and other aging signal components and 
hardware 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Passage of this Resolution authorizes the City Manager to sign an agreement 
with Delaware County accepting their contribution currently estimated at 5.4% 
(with a cap of $50,000) towards this project.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The total project cost is currently estimated at $920,322. Submitting a 
complete application requires budgeting sufficient funding to cover the City’s 
contribution to the project, currently estimated at $470,322.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 



Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-44 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
DELAWARE COUNTY FOR AN APPLICATION TO THE 
OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION (OPWC) FOR  THE 
WINTER STREET & NORTH UNION STREET 
RESURFACING AND WINTER STREET BRIDGE 
REHABILITATION PROJECT (ROUND 32 APPLICATION). 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Delaware provides financial assistance to political 
subdivisions applying for OPWC Grant funds for Capital Improvements to public 
infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve highway safety for both 
vehicle and pedestrian traffic by replacing damaged, deteriorated and rutted 
pavement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvement herein above described is 
considered to be a priority need for the community and is a qualified project under 
the County Cooperation Agreement Program. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter in to a 
Cooperative Agreement with Delaware County for a grant application not to exceed 
$50,000.00 for the City of Delaware for the pavement resurfacing and 
rehabilitation of Winter Street and Union Street and bridge repairs to the Winter 
Street Bridge. 

 
 SECTION 2.  That the City of Delaware agrees to be the designated lead 
agency, signing all required applications, agreements and correspondence.  

  
 SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM H DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-45 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN 
APPLICATION FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE THROUGH THE MID-OHIO 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION INSIGHT2050 TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City has been contemplating the adoption of a complete streets policy for 
some time, however lacks the internal staff time necessary to research, review 
and develop a policy appropriate for implementation in the City of Delaware.  The 
recent MORPC Insight2050 program provides a resource by which through an 
application for technical assistance, the City can utilize MORPC expertise in the 
development of a complete streets policy. Such policy would address issues 
concerning multimodal forms of transportation, and how these alternate forms 
of transportation are best accommodated through policy, land development 
regulations, and capital planning.  Examples of such projects include designated 
bikeways, bike lanes, accessible streets and intersection improvements, bike 
parking etc.  If approved, the City will work with MORPC staff for approximately 
one year in the development of the complete streets policy. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Mayor/Council support is required as part of the grant application process. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 



N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-45 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR TECHNICAL 
ASSISTANCE THROUGH THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 
PLANNING COMMISSION INSIGHT2050 TECHNICAL 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional 
Planning Commission (MORPC); and 
 

WHEREAS, MORPC has launched the insight2050 Technical Assistance 
Program which offers community and transportation planning assistance to 
MORPC members through a competitive application process; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has submitted a Letter of Intent to MORPC 
to assist with the development of a complete streets program; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC has deemed the proposed project eligible and 
encouraged the City to submit a full application by July 21, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, if the project is approved, the project would be completed within 
one year and require in-kind match of staff time equivalent to at least 25% of 
MORPC staff time. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
State of Ohio:  

SECTION 1. That a staff designee of City of Delaware is hereby authorized to 
apply for Technical Assistance through the insight2050 Technical Assistance 
Program programmed by the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) 
for the development of a complete streets program.  

SECTION 2. That the Council acknowledges and understands the 
“Insight2050 Technical Assistance Program Guide” and confirms to the best of its 
knowledge that the information contained in the project application is accurate, 
that it intends to diligently pursue that project, and that a local match of in-kind 
staff time will be provided.  

SECTION 3. That it is hereby found and determined that all formal actions 
of the Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were 
taken in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council 
and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were meeting 
open to the public and in compliance with the law.  



SECTION 4.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-46 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE RENAMING OF EASTSIDE PARK TO 
BENNETT PARK. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
A request to rename Eastside Park to Bennett Park has been made to honor the 
late Richard Bennett. Mr. Bennett was heavily involved in the creation of 
Eastside Park and has been an influential leader for the City of Delaware. See 
the attached application for more information.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per the Park Facilities & Dedication Policy the requested renaming must be 
considered by City Council.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Parks and Recreation Boards has recommended approval of the renaming 
at the June 20, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Request Application 
Letter from family 
Park Renaming Policy 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-46 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE RENAMING OF 
EASTSIDE PARK TO BENNETT PARK. 

 
WHEREAS, a request has been made by the public and family of Mr. 

Richard Bennett; and 
 

WHEREAS, the request has followed the procedures for renaming as 
outlined in the Parks Facilities & Dedication Policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends 

approval of the renaming on June 20, 2017. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the renaming of Eastside Park to Bennett Park. 
 
SECTION 2.   That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 ACCEPT____ REJECT____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 





Nomination of Eastside Neighborhood Park to be named “Dick Bennett Park”: 

Dick Bennet was born in Delaware, Ohio on April 18, 1942.  He served our country 
in the U.S. Air Force from 1960-1968, he was a Delaware City Police Officer for 20 
years, and was the head of the Delaware County Veterans Service for an 
additional 20 years. 

Dick Bennett was proud of his east side roots.  He always felt the east side kids 
deserved a park and he served on the East Side Park Committee that developed 
the current Eastside Park from an overgrown field to an established park.  Dick’s 
residence overlooked this same park until he was forced to move after the 
passing of his wife and his own poor health. 

He was also an active member of his east side church.  Dick Bennett volunteered 
as a teacher at the JVS (now Delaware Area Career Center), as an east side Boy 
Scouts Leader, and for the Delaware Police Department Explorers unit.   Dick 
Bennett also took two new Delaware City Police Officers from outside of 
Delaware and mentored them on the history of the City of Delaware.  Both Sheriff 
Russell Martin and I were always grateful for this mentoring and introduction into 
real community policy. 

Dick Bennett passed away on October 1, 2015 and is interred at Oakwood 
Cemetery in Delaware.  











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE:  07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-47 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AND ENTER 
INTO AN INTERGOVERMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE DELAWARE 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES FOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE VIOLATIONS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County Public Defender’s Office requires each city to have an agreement in 
place with the County to pay for counsel for indigent defendants in Municipal 
Court.   
 
Because defendants typically are not entitled to a public defender when 
charged under the City’s Codified Ordinances, we have not had to issue a 
payment for indigent defense services during the life of this agreement. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The County Public Defender requires annual renewals, authorized by City 
Council Ordinance every year.  This year the Public Defender has added 
additional language (highlighted in red) that must be included in the 
agreement.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-47 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AND ENTER INTO AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
DELAWARE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR 
INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES FOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE VIOLATIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, in 2011 the City of Delaware and the Delaware County 

Commissioners entered into an agreement on October 10, 2011 for the purpose 
of indigent defense services for Municipal Code violations; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Agreement, the Agreement can 

be renewed for additional one year terms upon approval by City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached agreement adds language required by the Ohio 

Public Defender, but is otherwise consistent with the existing agreement.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to renew the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for indigent defense services for Municipal Code 
violations attached hereto for a term ending on December 31, 2018. 
 

SECTION 2.  A copy of this resolution shall be delivered to the Delaware 
County Commissioners and the Ohio Public Defender, located at 250 East 
Broad Street, Suite 1400, Columbus, Ohio 43215. 

 
SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES 
FOR MUNICIPAL CODE VIOLATIONS 

(ASSIGNED COUNSEL SYSTEM) 
 

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Delaware County Commissioners, with a mailing 
address of 101 North Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), 
and the City of Delaware, with a mailing address of 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, 
(hereinafter referred to as the “City”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes its responsibility under the laws of the State of Ohio and of the United 
States of America to provide legal counsel to indigent persons charged with a violation of a City ordinance 
for which the penalty or any possible adjudication includes the potential loss of liberty; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has adopted a court-assigned counsel program, whereby individual attorneys are 
assigned on a case by case basis for indigent defendants who qualify; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County, pursuant to R.C. 120.33, may enter into a contract with a municipal corporation 
under which the municipal corporation shall reimburse the County for counsel appointed to represent 
indigent persons charged with a violation of an ordinance of the municipal corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, these contracts must contain terms in conformance with OAC 120-1-09, and the parties must 
follow the Ohio Public Defender Commission standards and guidelines and the limits of the County 
Maximum Fee Schedule for Appointed Counsel in order for the County to obtain reimbursement for indigent 
defense costs, pursuant to R.C 120.33 and R.C. 120.35, and pay the City its appropriate share; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement has been authorized by the City by Res./Ord. #  , passed by the 
Delaware City Council on    , and by Resolution No. 1117-  , passed by the 
County on    . 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree to bind themselves as follows: 
 
1. REPRESENTATION 
 

1.1 The City and County agree that the judges may assign by journal entry, recorded on the Court 
Docket, appointed counsel to represent indigent persons on or after the commencement date 
and during the term of this Agreement in which the defendant is indigent and charged with the 
commission of an offense or act that is a violation of a City ordinance and for which the penalty 
or any possible adjudication includes the potential loss of liberty. 

 
1.2 Indigency shall be determined in accordance with the standards of indigency and other rules 

and guidelines established by the Ohio Public Defender Commission and the State Public 
Defender, pursuant to R.C. 120.03 and OAC 120-1-03. In addition to indigency determination, 
all other rules, standards and guidelines issued by the Office of the Ohio Public Defender and 
the Ohio Public Defender Commission shall be followed. 

 
2. COMPENSATION 
 

2.1 Pursuant to R.C. 120.33 and the aforesaid resolutions, the County shall pay all legal fees and 
expenses to counsel duly appointed by the court to represent indigent persons charged with 
violations of the ordinances of the City. 

 
2.2 Payment for representation of indigent persons shall be in accordance with the fee schedule 

adopted by the County. 
 

2.3 The City agrees to reimburse the County for all legal fees and expenses that are paid by the 
County according to Section 2.1 within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice for such fees 



and expenses. Payments not made within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice shall be 
assessed a ten percent (10%) late payment penalty. 

 
2.4 The County shall promptly pay to the City any reimbursement received from the Office of the 

Ohio Public Defender Commission pursuant to R.C. Chapter 120 for any amounts expended 
pursuant to this Agreement, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of said reimbursement. 
Payments not made within thirty (30) days of the receipt of reimbursement shall be assessed 
a ten percent (10%) late payment penalty. 

 
3. DURATION OF CONTRACT AND TERMINATION 
 

3.1 This Agreement shall be for one year,commence on September ___, 2011 to September ___, 
201212, 2017 and shall remain in effect through December 31, 2018. This Agreement may be 
renewed for additional one year terms upon proper resolution by each party agreeing to the 
one year extension and proper appropriation of funding for the new year. Copies of the 
resolutions shall be sent to the Ohio Public Defender, 250 East Broad Street, Suite 1400, 
Columbus, Ohio 43215. 

 
3.2 If the County or the City shall fail to fulfill in a reasonable, timely, and proper manner its 

obligations under this Agreement, or if either party shall substantially violate any of the 
covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, then the aggrieved party shall 
thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other party 
of the termination and specifying an effective date thereof at least thirty (30) days before the 
effective date of termination. Termination by either party shall not constitute a waiver of any 
other right or remedy it may have in law or in equity for breach of this Agreement by the other 
party. 

 
3.3 Written notice shall be considered furnished when it is sent by Certified Mail return receipt 

requested or is hand delivered. 
 
4. TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 

4.1 As soon as is reasonably practical after a case is finally disposed of by the court, the court shall 
approve counsel fees in accordance with the standards of indigency, which fees shall not be 
taxed as part of the costs of the case. In only exceptional circumstances shall the court approve 
attorney’s fees in excess of the schedule established by the County.  

 
4.2 Recognizing that the requests for reimbursements must be received by the State Public 

Defender within ninety (90) days of the end of the calendar month in which a case is finally 
disposed of by the court, the clerk of court shall promptly notify the County of the fees of which 
have been approved. 

 
4.3 After approval, the County Auditor shall thereafter process the fees and expenses approved by 

the court in accordance with the procedure set forth in R.C. 120.33. 
 

4.4 There shall be no discrimination against any employee who is employed in the work covered 
by this Agreement or against any application for such employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, age, handicap, or national origin. This provision shall apply to, but not be limited 
to, employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination, raises of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. The County shall include a similar provision in any subcontract for 
services covered by this Agreement. 

 
4.5 No personnel of the parties or member of the governing body of any locality or other public 

official or employee of any such locality in which, or relating to which, the work under this 
Agreement is being carried out, and who exercises any functions or responsibilities in 



connection with the review or approval of the understanding or carrying out of any such work, 
shall, prior to completion of said work, voluntarily acquire any personal interest, direct or 
indirect, which is incompatible or in conflict with the discharge and fulfillment of his or her 
functions and responsibilities with respect to the carrying out of said work. 

 
5. MODIFICATION; ASSIGNMENT; PRIOR AGREEMENT 
 

5.1 This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement approved and executed by the 
parties named herein, or their successors. 

 
5.2 The County shall not assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the City’s prior written 

consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

5.3 This Agreement supersedes any previous agreement between the City and the County for 
indigent defense services for municipal code violations, and said previous agreements are 
hereby terminated. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands. 
 
 
COUNTY      CITY 
 
 
             
Dennis StapletonJeff Benton, President     R. Thomas Homan 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 11-137 and   Delaware City Manager 
Resolution No. 1117- 
 
Approved as to Form:     Approved as to Form: 
 
 
             
Delaware County Prosecuting Attorney   Delaware City Attorney 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
      
Timothy Young 
Ohio Public Defender 
 
 

 
 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-48 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
PARTNERING AGREEMENT WITH THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION (MORPC) FOR THE POINT RAILROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT, DEL-36-11.03. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Point Project represents the City’s most important transportation 
improvement.  In 2016, the city applied for MORPC Attributable Funding for 
this project and was notified in 2017 that the project had been selected for 
funding.  The attached resolution authorizes the City Manager to enter into a 
partnering agreement with MORPC for this project.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Intergovernmental Agreements require City Council approval.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
See attached Project Funding Sheet 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Project Funding Sheet 
MORPC Partnering Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-48 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A PARTNERING AGREEMENT WITH 
THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
(MORPC) FOR THE POINT RAILROAD BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT, DEL-36-11.03. 
  

 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has identified the Point Railroad Bridge 
replacement as the City’s most important transportation improvement project; 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware applied for Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 
Commission (MORPC) Attributable Funding for the Point Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 7, 2017, MORPC notified the city that the Point Project 
has been selected for MORPC Attributable Funding pursuant to Resolution T-1-
17 on March 7, 2017; and  
  

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware recognizes its local funding obligation for 
this project of approximately $6.1 million; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware will use its best effort to secure additional 

funding partners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware understands its obligation as to this 

project, which are more particularly described in the attached Partnering 
Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is authorized to enter 
in to the attached Partnering Agreement with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 
Commission for the following MORPC Attributable Fund project:  Point Railroad 
Bridge Replacement Project – DEL-36-11.03.  
 

SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 



 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-49 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
PARTNERING AGREEMENT WITH THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION (MORPC) FOR THE CITYWIDE SIGNALS UPGRADE PROJECT 
PHASE 1. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2016 the City applied for MORPC funding for a Citywide Signal Improvement 
Project, which was selected by MORPC for funding in 2017.  The project will 
result in improved signal timing throughout the City of Delaware.  
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Intergovernmental Agreements require City Council approval.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
See attached Project Funding Sheet 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Project Funding Sheet 
MORPC Partnering Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-49 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A PARTNERING AGREEMENT WITH 
THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
(MORPC) FOR THE CITYWIDE SIGNALS UPGRADE 
PROJECT PHASE 1. 
  

 WHEREAS, in 2016 the City of Delaware applied for MORPC Attributable 
Funding for the Citywide Signal Upgrade Project Phase 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2017, MORPC notified the city that the Citywide 

Signal Upgrade Project Phase 1 has been selected for MORPC Attributable 
Funding pursuant to Resolution T-1-17 on March 7, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware understands its obligation as to this 

project, which are more particularly described in the attached Partnering 
Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is authorized to enter 
into the attached Partnering Agreement with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 
Commission for the following MORPC Attributable Fund Project:  Citywide Signal 
Upgrade Project Phase 1.  
 

SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-50    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT-
ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Public Works Department – Division of Traffic & Engineering Services – 
utilizes engineering consulting firms to supplement in-house staff efforts to 
provide plan review and construction inspection services for land development 
projects.  The majority of the cost to provide these services is reimbursed 
through a flat fee invoiced before the services are provided. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Land Development activity in the City of Delaware currently remains very 
high.  The original 2016 appropriation of $500,000 is projected to be spent by 
the end of August.  Construction activity is expected to ramp up even higher in 
the late summer and be at record levels through the fall of 2017. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



The flat fees invoiced in the first half of 2017 exceed $1.5M.  The current 2017 
expenses for this line item (as of 6/30/17) are $322,000 and projected 
expenses are $890,000.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at Second Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Public Works – Land Development Cost/Revenue Tracking Sheets (2) 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-50 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT-
ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware and it’s agents, provide both plan review 

and construction inspection services through the Public Works Department – 
Division of Traffic & Engineering Services, for infrastructure elements of 
development projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the provision of plan review and construction inspection 

services is an integral part in assuring the quality of new infrastructure 
constructed within and dedicated to the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the cost to the City of providing these services is charged to 

and reimbursed back to the City by the individual developers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount included in the 2017 Budget to pay for these 

services is not sufficient based on current and projected development activity 
this year; and  

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to continue to 

perform plan reviews and provide construction inspection on new development 
in 2017. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund $400,000 increasing the following account: 

 
Engineering Department 
  Professional Services–Development (101-0065-5231)  $400,000 
 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 



safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for 
the timely review of development plans and for the continued utilization of 
construction inspection services, and as such will be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 07/24/2017  
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-51    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST      PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SALE OF A SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT 
2006 INTERNATIONAL RECYCLING TRUCK THAT HAS OUTGROWN ITS 
USEFUL SERVICEABLE LIFE. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
This vehicle has been deemed beyond its serviceable life to the City of 
Delaware. The recycling truck has been replaced with a newer model. The 
anticipated sale price will be in excess of the $5,000.00 threshold.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Council approval for the sales is necessary based on Delaware City Code 
Section 108. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES:  
N/A 
 
 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-51 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SALE OF A SOLID 
WASTE DEPARTMENT 2006 INTERNATIONAL 
RECYCLING TRUCK THAT HAS OUTGROWN ITS 
USEFUL SERVICEABLE LIFE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is the owner of a 2006 International 
Recycling Truck which is anticipated will exceeded the $5,000.00 threshold 
when offered for online sale; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Public Works Director has determined that the vehicle is 
no longer needed for municipal purposes; and   

 
 WHEREAS, Council finds that the vehicle has no historical value. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio that: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The 2006 International Recycling Truck be sold pursuant to 
Delaware City Code Section 108. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The vehicle will be advertised for sale on the electronic 
website known as GovDeals. Bids will be electronically received by GovDeals by 
a date and time as established and sold to the highest bidder.  
 
 SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code.  
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ______________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-52    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AND SIGN A PETITION ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, 
OHIO, AS THE “PROXIMATE CITY” WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 
349.01(M) OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE, TO ADD PROPERTY TO THE 
BERKSHIRE LANDING NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY UNDER CHAPTER 349 
OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As the proximate city, Delaware must give approval if Berkshire Landing is going 
to expand its New Community Authority (NCA).  In looking at the potential impact 
of the development on the City, staff recommends that the City approve this NCA 
without any financial consideration.  
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Under Ohio Revised Code the proximate city must give approval by ordinance or 
resolution.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Negligible impact on City infrastructure caused by the future development.  
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
This is consistent with past practice regarding NCA requests.  
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Executive Summary 
Petition 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  17-52 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND SIGN A PETITION 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO, AS 
THE “PROXIMATE CITY” WITHIN THE MEANING OF 
SECTION 349.01(M) OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE, 
TO ADD PROPERTY TO THE BERKSHIRE LANDING 
NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY UNDER CHAPTER 349 
OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, Berkshire Crossing Development, LLC (the “Developer”) has 

previously submitted a petition to the City of Delaware requesting the 
establishment of a new community authority (the “Authority”) named the 
“Berkshire Landing New Community Authority” comprising over 1,000 acres in 
Delaware County, Ohio for the purposes of developing that property (the 
“Existing District”) as one functionally interrelated community, for the purposes 
of obtaining approval of the City as the “proximate city” under Section 349.01 of 
the Revised Code ;  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 118-2014 passed by City Council 

on December 22, 2014, the City provided its approval as the proximate City for 
the establishment of the Authority ; 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the City, as a “proximate 
city” sign a petition (the “Petition”) to be presented to the Board of 
Commissioners (the “Board”) of Delaware County Ohio (the “County”) to add 
approximately 237.22 acres (the “Additional Property”) to the Existing District 
governed by the Authority in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 349 of 
the Ohio Revised Code; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 

 
Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and sign the 

Petition on behalf of the City and the Council, which Petition shall be presented 
to the Council pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code to add the 
Additional Property to the Existing District within the jurisdiction of the 
Berkshire Landing New Community Authority for the benefit of the City, its 
residents and the residents of the proposed new community authority.  The City 
Manager’s signature on that Petition shall indicate the approval of that Petition 
by the “proximate city” within the meaning of Section 349.01(M) of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

 
Section 2.  All other officers of the City are authorized to take such other 



 - 2 - 

actions as may be needed in connection with addition of the Additional Property 
to the Existing District and to provide proximate city approval as needed for such 
actions.    

 
Section 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council or its committees, 
and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted 
in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance 
with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
 Section 4.  This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety of 
this City and for the further reason that this Ordinance is required to be 
immediately effective to provide for the timely consideration of the petition by the 
County, prior to the expiration of certain provisions in the law that make the 
establishment of such community authority possible, thus securing for the City 
and its residents additional economic benefits from the new community 
authority which are needed to provide for the health, welfare and safety of the 
residents of the City; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
PASSED:  , 2017 YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 CITY CLERK   MAYOR 
 

 

































3 
B

'S
 &

 K
 R

D
. (

C
.R

. 3
5)

S.R. 36/37

IN
TE

R
S

TA
TE

 7
1

FO
U

R
W

IN
D

S
 D

R
.

DATE: DWG SCALE:

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY: APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NO:

EXHIBIT:

PARCEL EXHIBIT

161-1671"=400'JULY 2017
AB MCR MCR

1 OF 1

BERLIN & BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP
DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO

250 Old Wilson Bridge Road · Suite 250 · Worthington, OH  43085
614-540-6633 · 888-598-6808 

www.cecinc.com

NORTH





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-53    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT 
AND SCHOOL COMPENSATION AGREEMENT WITH 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, 
DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER AND THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE FOR INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS ON PARCEL 
519-432-25-022-000 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are requesting City Council’s approval for the City Manager to enter into a 
Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) Tax Incentive Agreement and School 
Compensation Agreement with 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, DELAWARE CITY 
SCHOOLS and THE DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER for a $310,000 investment 
in a new building on parcel 519-432-25-022-000, the vacant lot to the West of 12 West 
restaurant. 
 
Owner David DiStefano has submitted an application for the Community 
Reinvestment Area Tax Abatement. 
 
With the new building, the company has committed to hiring 9 FTEs with a payroll of 
$350,000 within three years of completion and occupancy of the building. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
We calculated a 100%/15 year CRA tax abatement generating an approximate 
$70,640.85 in tax savings after 15 years on his $310,000 investment. Due to the 
abatement being for a new payroll of $350,000, a School Compensation Agreement is 



not required. The schools must approve the CRA because it is over 50% and the total 
proposed school compensation on improvements is less than 50%.  
 
The Tax Incentive Negotiation Committee and Staff are recommending a 100%/15 year 
CRA to assist the company with the construction of this new building which is a 
significant investment in our historic downtown. The company also will enter into a  
company paid School Pilot Payment Agreement equaling $1,170.04 per year or 
$17,550.60 after 15 years. These pilot payments would be divided between DCS and 
DACC in accordance with their respective tax rates. With the recommendations as 
made, this project would achieve a 166.37% ROI for the City with $97,125 in income 
taxes after 15 years multiplied by an INPLAN multiplier. The schools would achieve a 
24.84% ROI, but also would retain the taxes they currently receive on the unimproved 
building of $589.89 per year or $8,848.35 after 15 years. With the School 
Compensation Agreement in place the schools will receive two times more revenue 
than they are currently receiving on the vacant parcel. 
 
This proposed incentive package provides an opportunity to spur considerable 
investment and continue the upward progress of investment and new businesses in 
our historic downtown. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Tax Incentive Review Council, 6/29/17 
VOTE: Approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
COST: N/A 
FUND SOURCES: N/A 
BUDGETED: NO 
 
DEPARTMENTS IMPACTED: Economic Development 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Kelsey Scott, Economic Development Specialist 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CRA School Notification Letters 
Incentives Application 
CRA Agreement 
School Compensation Agreement 
Map Exhibit of Building Location 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 17-53 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMMUNITY 
REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT AND SCHOOL 
COMPENSATION AGREEMENT WITH 2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC, DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, 
DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER AND THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE FOR INVESTMENT IN REAL 
PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS ON PARCEL 519-432-
25-022-000 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has encouraged development of and 
investment in real property in the area designated as Community Reinvestment 
Area 141-1135-1 pursuant to ORC 3735; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware by Resolution Number 01-52, resolved 
to review and approve all Community Reinvestment Area Agreements which 
meet the statutory guidelines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware partners with impacted school districts 
to ensure mutual benefit from economic development projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Delaware established an economic 
development fund to attract, incentive and assist high return on investment 
projects in the City of Delaware. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF DELAWARE, 
DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Community Reinvestment Area Agreement by and 
between the City of Delaware and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC meets all of the 
guidelines established by the State of Ohio and the City of Delaware, and the 
same is hereby approved. 
 
 SECTION 2.    The School Compensation Agreement by and between the 
City of Delaware, Delaware City School District and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC 
meets all of the school compensation guidelines established by the State of 
Ohio and the City of Delaware, and the same is hereby approved. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the City Council of the City of Delaware hereby 
authorizes the execution of said agreements by the City Manager to implement 
the Community Reinvestment Area Program and School Compensation 
Agreement for this project. 
 
 SECTION 5.      This Council finds and determines that all formal actions 
of this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the 



 2 

passage of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in 
those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance 
with the law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 6. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City, and is necessary to finalize 
negotiations, and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
  



  

 
 

 
 
 
July 6, 2017 
  
Mary Beth Freeman 
Superintendent 
Delaware Area Career Center 
4565 Columbus Pike 
Delaware, OH 43015 
 
Paul Craft 
Superintendent 
Delaware City Schools 
74 W. William St. 
Delaware, OH 43015 
 
 
RE: 2nd Half Ventures, LLC  Community Reinvestment Area Request for Tax Incentives and School 
Compensation Agreement 
 
Dear Superintendents Craft and Freeman: 
 
In an effort to assist 2nd Half Ventures, LLC in their effort to invest in and redevelop a vacant and key 
parcel in our downtown, the City of Delaware’s Incentive Negotiation Committee, that includes the 
superintendents and treasurers from the impacted school districts, negotiated a 100% for 15 year CRA 
tax abatement for their potential construction of a new building on  Parcel #51943225022000. As part of 
the CRA abatement, the companies have agreed to a School Compensation Agreement with annual 
payments to the school districts equaling 30% of what the school districts would have seen without the 
abatement on the new construction. The total of payments to both Delaware City Schools and Delaware 
Area Career Center would be $1,170.04/year for a total of $17,550.60 after fifteen years. 
 
All incentives are based on 2nd Half Ventures, LLC’s commitments to the creation of 9 new full-time 
equivalent jobs to the City of Delaware with a payroll minimum of $350,000 within 3 years of the 
completion of your project. A copy of their application for tax incentives is attached.  
 
CRA (ORC 3735.65-70) guidelines require that Boards of Education be informed of amendments, notice 
requirements, review rights, meeting requests, revenue sharing requirements, and/or program 
participation. Since the CRA legislation and company agreements contain many legal requirements, you 
may want to review Ohio Revised Code references (please see: 
http://onlinedocs.andersonpublishing.com/). 
 
The City of Delaware is requesting a waiver of the required 45 business day notice period so that 
Delaware City Council will be able to consider these requests at our regularly scheduled Council meeting 
on August 14, 2017, held at Delaware City Hall, 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, at 7:00 P.M.  A 



 

second reading and public hearing may be scheduled for August 28, 2017, but may not be needed if 
Council chooses to take action on the first reading for economic development purposes. School Board 
Members, staff and the public are welcome to attend these meetings.  Please let me know if you require 
any further assistance. I can be reached at 740.203.1016 or shughes@delawareohio.net. Please email 
me with confirmation of receipt of this notification so that I can send it with our petition to the Ohio 
Development Services Agency. 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
Sean Hughes 
Economic Development Director 
 
xc: Honorable George Kaitsa, Auditor 

R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer Finance Director 
Melissa Lee , Treasurer, Delaware City School District 
Chris Bell, Treasurer, Delaware Area Career Center 
Bob Lamb, Delaware County Economic Development Director 

 
  
Attached: 
1. ORC 3735.671 
2. 2nd Half Ventures, LLC application for tax incentives 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

mailto:shughes@delawareohio.net


 

 

3735.671 Written agreement where commercial or industrial property is to be exempted. 

(A) If construction or remodeling of commercial or industrial property is to be exempted from taxation pursuant to 
section 3735.67 of the Revised Code, the legislative authority and the owner of the property, prior to the 
commencement of construction or remodeling, shall enter into a written agreement, binding on both parties for a 
period of time that does not end prior to the end of the period of the exemption, that includes all of the 
information and statements prescribed by this section. Agreements may include terms not prescribed by this 
section, but such terms shall in no way derogate from the information and statements prescribed by this section. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in division (A)(2) or (3) of this section, an agreement entered into under this 
section shall not be approved by the legislative authority unless the board of education of the city, local, or 
exempted village school district within the territory of which the property is or will be located approves the 
agreement. For the purpose of obtaining such approval, the legislative authority shall certify a copy of the 
agreement to the board of education not later than forty-five days prior to approving the agreement, excluding 
Saturday, Sunday, and a legal holiday as defined in section 1.14 of the Revised Code. The board of education, by 
resolution adopted by a majority of the board, shall approve or disapprove the agreement and certify a copy of the 
resolution to the legislative authority not later than fourteen days prior to the date stipulated by the legislative 
authority as the date upon which approval of the agreement is to be formally considered by the legislative 
authority. The board of education may include in the resolution conditions under which the board would approve 
the agreement. The legislative authority may approve an agreement at any time after the board of education 
certifies its resolution approving the agreement to the legislative authority, or, if the board approves the 
agreement conditionally, at any time after the conditions are agreed to by the board and the legislative authority. 

(2) Approval of an agreement by the board of education is not required under division (A)(1) of this section if, for 
each tax year the real property is exempted from taxation, the sum of the following quantities, as estimated at or 
prior to the time the agreement is formally approved by the legislative authority, equals or exceeds fifty per cent 
of the amount of taxes, as estimated at or prior to that time, that would have been charged and payable that year 
upon the real property had that property not been exempted from taxation: 

(a) The amount of taxes charged and payable on any portion of the assessed valuation of the new structure or 
remodeling that will not be exempted from taxation under the agreement; 

(b) The amount of taxes charged and payable on tangible personal property located on the premises of the new 
structure or of the structure to be remodeled under the agreement, whether payable by the owner of the 
structure or by a related member, as defined in section 5733.042 of the Revised Code without regard to division 
(B) of that section. 

(c) The amount of any cash payment by the owner of the new structure or structure to be remodeled to the school 
district, the dollar value, as mutually agreed to by the owner and the board of education, of any property or 
services provided by the owner of the property to the school district, whether by gift, loan, or otherwise, and any 
payment by the legislative authority to the school district pursuant to section 5709.82 of the Revised Code. 

The estimates of quantities used for purposes of division (A)(2) of this section shall be estimated by the legislative 
authority. The legislative authority shall certify to the board of education that the estimates have been made in 
good faith. Departures of the actual quantities from the estimates subsequent to approval of the agreement by the 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.67
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/gp1.14
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5733.042
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.82


 

board of education do not invalidate the agreement. 

(3) If a board of education has adopted a resolution waiving its right to approve agreements and the resolution 
remains in effect, approval of an agreement by the board is not required under this division. If a board of 
education has adopted a resolution allowing a legislative authority to deliver the notice required under this 
division fewer than forty-five business days prior to the legislative authority's execution of the agreement, the 
legislative authority shall deliver the notice to the board not later than the number of days prior to such execution 
as prescribed by the board in its resolution. If a board of education adopts a resolution waiving its right to approve 
agreements or shortening the notification period, the board shall certify a copy of the resolution to the legislative 
authority. If the board of education rescinds such a resolution, it shall certify notice of the rescission to the 
legislative authority. 

(B) Each agreement shall include the following information: 

(1) The names of all parties to the agreement; 

(2) A description of the remodeling or construction, whether or not to be exempted from taxation, including 
existing or new structure size and cost thereof; the value of machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures, 
including an itemization of the value of machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures used at another location in 
this state prior to the agreement and relocated or to be relocated from that location to the property, and the value 
of machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures at the facility prior to the execution of the agreement; the value 
of inventory at the property, including an itemization of the value of inventory held at another location in this state 
prior to the agreement and relocated or to be relocated from that location to the property, and the value of 
inventory held at the property prior to the execution of the agreement; 

(3) The scheduled starting and completion dates of remodeling or construction of real property or of investments 
made in machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, and inventory; 

(4) Estimates of the number of employee positions to be created each year of the agreement and of the number of 
employee positions retained by the owner due to the remodeling or construction, itemized as to the number of 
full-time, part-time, permanent, and temporary positions; 

(5) Estimates of the dollar amount of payroll attributable to the positions set forth in division (B)(4) of this section, 
similarly itemized; 

(6) The number of employee positions, if any, at the property and at any other location in this state at the time the 
agreement is executed, itemized as to the number of full-time, part-time, permanent, and temporary positions. 

(C) Each agreement shall set forth the following information and incorporate the following statements: 

(1) A description of real property to be exempted from taxation under the agreement, the percentage of the 
assessed valuation of the real property exempted from taxation, and the period for which the exemption is 
granted, accompanied by the statement: "The exemption commences the first year for which the real property 
would first be taxable were that property not exempted from taxation. No exemption shall commence after .......... 



 

 

(insert date) nor extend beyond .......... (insert date)." 

(2) ".......... (insert name of owner) shall pay such real property taxes as are not exempted under this agreement 
and are charged against such property and shall file all tax reports and returns as required by law. If .......... (insert 
name of owner) fails to pay such taxes or file such returns and reports, exemptions from taxation granted under 
this agreement are rescinded beginning with the year for which such taxes are charged or such reports or returns 
are required to be filed and thereafter." 

(3) ".......... (insert name of owner) hereby certifies that at the time this agreement is executed, .......... (insert name 
of owner) does not owe any delinquent real or tangible personal property taxes to any taxing authority of the State 
of Ohio, and does not owe delinquent taxes for which .......... (insert name of owner) is liable under Chapter 5733., 
5735., 5739., 5741., 5743., 5747., or 5753. of the Ohio Revised Code, or, if such delinquent taxes are owed, .......... 
(insert name of owner) currently is paying the delinquent taxes pursuant to an undertaking enforceable by the 
State of Ohio or an agent or instrumentality thereof, has filed a petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C.A. 101 , et 
seq., or such a petition has been filed against .......... (insert name of owner). For the purposes of this certification, 
delinquent taxes are taxes that remain unpaid on the latest day prescribed for payment without penalty under the 
chapter of the Revised Code governing payment of those taxes." 

(4) ".......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to effect, claim, reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement 
including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation and providing any necessary certificates 
required in connection with such exemptions." 

(5) "If for any reason .......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) revokes the designation of the area, 
entitlements granted under this agreement shall continue for the number of years specified under this agreement, 
unless .......... (insert name of owner) materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement and ................... 
(insert name of municipal corporation or county) terminates or modifies the exemptions from taxation pursuant to 
this agreement." 

(6) "If .......... (insert name of owner) materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement, or if .......... (insert 
name of municipal corporation or county) determines that the certification as to delinquent taxes required by this 
agreement is fraudulent, .......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) may terminate or modify the 
exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement." 

(7) ".......... (insert name of owner) shall provide to the proper tax incentive review council any information 
reasonably required by the council to evaluate the applicant's compliance with the agreement, including returns 
filed pursuant to section 5711.02 of the Ohio Revised Code if requested by the council." 

(8) "This agreement is not transferable or assignable without the express, written approval of .......... (insert name 
of municipal corporation or county)." 

(9) "Exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement shall be revoked if it is determined that ........... (insert 
name of owner), any successor to that person, or any related member (as those terms are defined in division (E) of 
section 3735.671 of the Ohio Revised Code) has violated the prohibition against entering into this agreement 
under division (E) of section 3735.671 or section 5709.62 or 5709.63 of the Ohio Revised Code prior to the time 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5711.02
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.62
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.63


 

prescribed by that division or either of those sections." 

(10) ".......... (insert name of owner) and ........... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) acknowledge that 
this agreement must be approved by formal action of the legislative authority of .......... (insert name of municipal 
corporation or county) as a condition for the agreement to take effect. This agreement takes effect upon such 
approval." 

The statement described in division (C)(6) of this section may include the following statement, appended at the 
end of the statement: ", and may require the repayment of the amount of taxes that would have been payable had 
the property not been exempted from taxation under this agreement." If the agreement includes a statement 
requiring repayment of exempted taxes, it also may authorize the legislative authority to secure repayment of such 
taxes by a lien on the exempted property in the amount required to be repaid. Such a lien shall attach, and may be 
perfected, collected, and enforced, in the same manner as a mortgage lien on real property, and shall otherwise 
have the same force and effect as a mortgage lien on real property. 

(D) Except as otherwise provided in this division, an agreement entered into under this section shall require that 
the owner pay an annual fee equal to the greater of one per cent of the amount of taxes exempted under the 
agreement or five hundred dollars; provided, however, that if the value of the incentives exceeds two hundred 
fifty thousand dollars, the fee shall not exceed two thousand five hundred dollars. The fee shall be payable to the 
legislative authority once per year for each year the agreement is effective on the days and in the form specified in 
the agreement. Fees paid shall be deposited in a special fund created for such purpose by the legislative authority 
and shall be used by the legislative authority exclusively for the purpose of complying with section 3735.672 of the 
Revised Code and by the tax incentive review council created under section 5709.85 of the Revised Code 
exclusively for the purposes of performing the duties prescribed under that section. The legislative authority may 
waive or reduce the amount of the fee, but such waiver or reduction does not affect the obligations of the 
legislative authority or the tax incentive review council to comply with section3735.672 or 5709.85 of the Revised 
Code. 

(E) If any person that is party to an agreement granting an exemption from taxation discontinues operations at the 
structure to which that exemption applies prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, that person, any 
successor to that person, and any related member shall not enter into an agreement under this section or 
section 5709.62 , 5709.63 , or 5709.632 of the Revised Code, and no legislative authority shall enter into such an 
agreement with such a person, successor, or related member, prior to the expiration of five years after the 
discontinuation of operations. As used in this division, "successor" means a person to which the assets or equity of 
another person has been transferred, which transfer resulted in the full or partial nonrecognition of gain or loss, or 
resulted in a carryover basis, both as determined by rule adopted by the tax commissioner. "Related member" has 
the same meaning as defined in section 5733.042 of the Revised Code without regard to division (B) of that 
section. 

The director of development shall review all agreements submitted to the director under division (F) of this section 
for the purpose of enforcing this division. If the director determines there has been a violation of this division, the 
director shall notify the legislative authority of such violation, and the legislative authority immediately shall 
revoke the exemption granted under the agreement. 

(F) When an agreement is entered into under this section, the legislative authority authorizing the agreement shall 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.672
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.85
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.672
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.85
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.62
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.63
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.632
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5733.042


 

 

forward a copy of the agreement to the director of development within fifteen days after the agreement is entered 
into. 

Effective Date: 09-26-2003; 03-23-2005 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 











 1 

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT 
CITY OF DELAWARE and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC 

 
This agreement made and entered into by and between the City of Delaware, Ohio, a municipal 
government, with its main offices located at 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015 
and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, PO Box 648, Delaware, OH 43015, WITNESSETH; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has encouraged the development of real property and the 
acquisition of personal property located in the area designated as Community Reinvestment 
Area 141-1135-01; and 
 
WHEREAS, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC desires to construct a new building in Downtown 
Delaware at 14 W. William St. (Parcel #51943225022000) for retail use within the boundaries of 
the aforementioned Community Reinvestment Area, provided that the appropriate development 
incentives are available to support the economic viability of said PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio, by Resolution No. 17-52 adopted July 
23, 2001, designated the area as a “Community Reinvestment Area” pursuant to Chapter 3735 
of the Ohio Revised Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, effective September 4, 2001, the Director of Development of the State of Ohio 
determined that the aforementioned area designated in said Resolution No. 01-52 contains the 
characteristics set forth in Section 3735.66 of the Ohio Revised Code and confirmed said area 
as Community Reinvestment Area #141-1135-01 under said Chapter 3735; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware, having the appropriate authority for the stated type of project 
desires to provide 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC with incentives available for the development of 
the PROJECT in said Community Reinvestment Area under Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised 
Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC has submitted a proposed agreement application 
(herein attached as Exhibit A) to the City of Delaware (hereinafter referred to as 
“APPLICATION”); and 
 
WHEREAS, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC has remitted the required state application fee of 
$750.00 made payable to the Ohio Department of Development with the APPLICATION to be 
forwarded to said department with a copy of the final agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tax Incentive Negotiating Committee of the City of Delaware investigated the 
APPLICATION of 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC on June 29, 2017, and recommended approval to 
the Council of the City of Delaware on the basis that 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC is qualified by 
financial responsibility and business experience to create and preserve employment 
opportunities in said Community Reinvestment Area and improve the economic climate of the 
City of Delaware; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project site as proposed by 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC is located in the 
Delaware City School District and the Delaware Area Career Center.  Per the attached 
resolutions authorizing the superintendents to act on behalf of their boards and noted in the 
minutes of the June 29, 2017, meeting of the Tax Incentive Negotiating Committee meeting, the 
boards of education have been notified in accordance with Section 5709.83 and been given a 
copy of the APPLICATION; and 



 2 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3735.67(A) and in conformance with the format required under 
Section 3735.671(B) of the Ohio Revised Code, the parties hereto desire to set forth their 
agreement with respect to matters hereinafter contained; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained and the 
benefit to be derived by the parties from the execution hereof, the parties herein agree as 
follows: 
 

1. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall a new building in historic Downtown Delaware located 
at 14 West William Street on Parcel 51943225022000, as the same is known and 
designated on the Auditor’s revised list of lots in Delaware, Ohio.   
 
The PROJECT will involve a total on-site infrastructure investment by 2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC of TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($250,000), 
plus or minus 10%, at the PROJECT site according to the following: 
 
 

Real Property  
New Building Construction $ 

On-Site Infrastructure $250,000 
Sub Total Real Property $250,000 

Land Acquisition $60,000 
Total Real Property $310,000 

Personal Property  
     Equipment $0 

F&F  $0 
Inventory $0 

Total Investment $310,000 
 
No tax incentives are available for the Personal Property. 
 
The PROJECT will begin by September 1, 2017 and all acquisition, construction and 
construction will be completed by May 1, 2018. 
 

2. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall create or cause to be hired within a time period not 
exceeding 12 months after the completion of construction and subsequent occupancy of 
the aforesaid facility, the equivalent of 6 new full-time permanent job opportunities, 6 
new part-time permanent job opportunities, 0 full-time temporary job opportunities, and 0 
part-time temporary job opportunities, for a total of 9 full-time equivalent (FTE) job 
opportunities to be created by the PROJECT. 

 
The job creation period begins May 1, 2018 and all jobs will be in place by May 1, 2021 
(3 years or 36 months after the completion of the PROJECT per ORC3735B4). 
 
2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC currently have 0 full-time employees, and 0 part-time 
employees at the project site.   
 



 3 

2nD HALF VENTURES, LLC has 0 employees at other sites in Ohio or the US.   
 
This increase in the number of employees shall result in at least THREE HUNDRED 
AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($350,000) in total annual payroll ($350,000 NEW 
FULL TIME PERMANENT) generated at the PROJECT site by May 1, 2021.   
 
Based on new job and payroll creation levels, the City of Delaware estimates an annual 
new employee income tax revenue amount of $6,475 ($350,000 payroll times the current 
income tax rate of 1.85%) for the PROJECT.  If in any year of this Agreement the level of 
new and retained payroll does not reach or falls below levels established by this 
Agreement, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC agree to reimburse the City of Delaware for lost 
employee income taxes.  The City of Delaware and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC agree to 
add a 3% inflation factor per year.  Should the City’s income tax rates change, these 
figures are adjusted accordingly.  

 
3. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall provide to the proper Tax Incentive Review Council 

any information reasonably required by the council to evaluate the property owner’s 
compliance with the agreement, including returns filed pursuant to section 5711.02 of the 
Ohio Revised Code if requested by the council (ORC3735.671C7). 

 
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
a. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall make the following payments totaling $17,550.60 to 

Delaware City School District and Delaware Area Career Center (Split between 
districts based on current tax rate percentage split.) to benefit the districts’ 
educational initiatives. This payment shall be subject to the terms and conditions of a 
separate School Compensation Agreement between 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, 
DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER and the CITY 
OF DELAWARE. The company will make these payments directly to the school 
districts upon receipt of invoices from the Delaware City Schools and Delaware Area 
Career Center for the amounts established in the School Compensation Agreement 
issued at the following times. 

School Compensation Payment #    Payment Due Date         Amount  

Payment #1                        9/30/20                  $1,170.04  
Payment #2                        9/30/21                $1,170.04 
Payment #3                        9/30/22                  $1,170.04 
Payment #4                        9/30/23                  $1,170.04 
Payment #5                        9/30/24                  $1,170.04 
Payment #6                        9/30/25                 $1,170.04 
Payment #7                        9/30/26                  $1,170.04 
Payment #8                       9/30/27                  $1,170.04 
Payment #9                        9/30/28                  $1,170.04 
Payment #10                       9/30/29                  $1,170.04 
Payment #11   9/30/30   $1,170.04 
Payment #12   9/30/31   $1,170.04 
Payment #13   9/30/32   $1,170.04 
Payment #14   9/30/33   $1,170.04 
Payment #15   9/30/34   $1,170.04 
 



 4 

b. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall maintain a membership in the MAINSTREET 
DELAWARE, INC. 

c. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall contact the Superintendent, Delaware Area Career 
Center for information on adult education and training services. 

 
4. City of Delaware hereby grants 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC a tax exemption for real 

property improvements made to the PROJECT site pursuant to Section 3735.67 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and shall be for fifteen (15) years in the following amounts: 

 
  Year of Tax Exemption  Tax Exemption Amount 
 
   Year  1     100% 
   Year  2     100% 
   Year  3     100% 
   Year  4     100% 
   Year  5     100% 
   Year  6     100% 
   Year  7     100% 
   Year  8     100% 
   Year  9     100% 
   Year 10    100% 
   Year 11    100% 
   Year 12    100% 
   Year 13    100% 
   Year 14    100% 
   Year 15    100% 
 

The exemption commences the first full taxable year the facility is 100% complete.  No 
exemption shall commence before December 31, 2017, nor extend beyond December 
31, 2034.  Said exemption shall be based on the increase on the assessed value of real 
property attributed to the real property improvements at the PROJECT site.  2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC must file the appropriate tax forms (DTE 23) with the County Auditor 
to effect and maintain the exemptions covered in the agreement. 

 
5. A. The City of Delaware waives the annual fee equal to the greater of one percent of the 

dollar value of incentives offered under the agreement or five hundred dollars 
(ORC3735.671D). 

 
6. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC shall pay such real and tangible personal property taxes as 

are not exempted under this agreement and are charged against such property and shall 
file all tax reports and returns as required by law. If 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC fails to 
pay such taxes or file such returns and reports after written notification, all incentives 
granted under this agreement are rescinded beginning with the year for which such 
taxes are charged or such reports or returns are required to be filed and thereafter 
(ORC3735.671C2). 

 
7. City of Delaware shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or appropriate to 

effect, claim, reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this 
agreement including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation and 
providing any necessary certificates required in connection with such exemptions 
(ORC3735.671C4). 



 5 

 
8. If for any reason the Community Reinvestment Area designation expires, the Director of 

the Ohio Department of Development revokes certification of the area, or the City of 
Delaware revokes the designation of the area, entitlements granted under this 
agreement shall continue for the number of years specified under this agreement, unless 
2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement 
and the City of Delaware terminates or modifies the exemptions from taxation granted 
under this agreement (ORC3735.671C5). 

 
9. If 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this 

agreement, or if the City of Delaware determines that the certification as to delinquent 
taxes required by this agreement is fraudulent, the City of Delaware may terminate or 
modify the exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement and may require the 
repayment of the amount of taxes that would have been payable had the property not 
been exempted from taxation under this agreement (ORC3735.671C6). 

 
10. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC hereby certifies that at the time this agreement is executed, 

2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC does not owe any delinquent real or tangible personal 
property taxes to any taxing authority of the State of Ohio, and does not owe delinquent 
taxes for which 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC is liable under Chapter 5733., 5735., 5739., 
5741., 5743., 5747., or 5753. of the Ohio Revised Code, or, if such delinquent taxes are 
owed, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, currently is paying the delinquent taxes pursuant to 
an undertaking enforceable by the State of Ohio or an agent or instrumentality thereof, 
has filed a petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C.A. 101, et seq., or such a petition has 
been filed against 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC. For the purposes of the certification, 
delinquent taxes are taxes that remain unpaid on the latest day prescribed for payment 
without penalty under the chapter of the Revised Code governing payment of those 
taxes (ORC3735.671C3). 

 
11. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC affirmatively covenants that 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC do 

not owe: (1) any delinquent taxes to the State of Ohio or a political subdivision of the 
State; (2) any moneys to the State or a state agency for the administration or 
enforcement of any environmental laws of the State; and (3) any other moneys to the 
State, a state agency or a political subdivision of the State that are past due, whether the 
amounts owed are being contested in a court of law or not. 

 
12. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC and the CITY OF DELAWARE acknowledge that this 

agreement must be approved by formal action of the legislative authority of the City of 
Delaware and approval and execution of this agreement by 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC 
as a condition for the agreement to take effect (ORC3735.671C10).  

 
13. The City of Delaware has developed a policy to ensure recipients of a Community 

Reinvestment Area tax benefits practice non-discriminating hiring in its operations.  By 
executing this agreement, 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC is committing to following non-
discriminating hiring practices acknowledging that no individual may be denied 
employment solely on the basis of race, religion, sex, disability, color, national origin, or 
ancestry. 

 
14. Exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement shall be revoked if it is 

determined that 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC any successor property owner, or any 
related member (as those terms are defined in Division (E) of Section 3735.671 of the 



 6 

Ohio Revised Code) has violated the prohibition against entering into this agreement 
under Division (E) of Section 3735.671 or Section 5709.62 or 5709.63 of the Ohio 
Revised Code prior to the time prescribed by that division or either of those sections 
(ORC3735.671C9). 

 
15. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC affirmatively covenants that it has made no false statements 

to the State or local political subdivisions in the process of obtaining approval of the 
Community Reinvestment Area incentives.  If any representative of 2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC has knowingly made a false statement to the State or local political 
subdivision to obtain the Community Reinvestment Area incentives, 2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC shall be required to immediately return all benefits received under the 
Community Reinvestment Area Agreement pursuant ORC Section 9.66 (C)(2) and shall 
be ineligible for any future economic development assistance from the State, any state 
agency or a political subdivision pursuant to ORC Section 9.66(C)(1).  Any person who 
provides a false statement to secure economic development assistance may be guilty of 
falsification, a misdemeanor of the first degree, pursuant to ORC Section 2921.13A3, 
which is punishable by a fine of not more than $100 and/or a term of imprisonment of not 
more than six months. 

 
16. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC acknowledge that this agreement is not transferable or 

assignable without the express, written approval of the City of Delaware 
(ORC3735.671C8). 

 
17. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC acknowledge that if any person that is party to an 

agreement granting an exemption from taxation discontinues operations at the structure 
to which that exemption applies prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, that 
person, any successor to that person, and any related member shall not enter into an 
agreement under this section or sections 5709.62, 5709.63, or 5709.632 of the Ohio 
Revised Code, and no legislative authority shall enter into such an agreement with such 
a person, successor, or related member, prior to the expiration of five years after  the 
discontinuation of operations.  As used in this division, ‘successor’ means a person to 
which the assets or equity of another person has been transferred, which transfer 
resulted in the full or partial non-recognition of gain or loss, or resulted in a carryover 
basis, both as determined by rule adopted by the tax commissioner.  ‘Related member’ 
has the same meaning as defined in section 5733.042 of the Ohio Revised Code without 
regard to Division (B) of that section (ORC3735.671E). 

 
18. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC hereby represent that it has full authority to act, negotiate, 

and execute this agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Delaware, Ohio, by R. Thomas Homan, its City Manager, 
and pursuant to Ordinance 17-__ adopted on June 12, 2017, has caused this instrument to be 
executed this ______ day of __________ 2017 and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC has caused this 
instrument to be executed on this ______ day of __________ 2017 
 
. 
 
 
 
 



 7 

    CITY OF DELAWARE 
 
    By:___________________________ 
    R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
 
    2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC 
 
    ___________________________     
          David DiStefano, Owner 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________________ 
      Darren Shulman, Delaware City Attorney 



 1 

School Compensation Agreement 
2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC 

Community Reinvestment Area #141-1135-01 
 
This agreement between the City of Delaware, a municipal corporation, with 
its offices at 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015; Delaware City 
School District Board of Education, a public school district, with its principal 
offices at 74 West William St., Delaware, Ohio 43015; Delaware Area Career 
Center Board of Education, a public school district with its principal offices at 
4565 Columbus Pike, Delaware, OH 43015 and 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, 
PO BOX 648, Delaware, Ohio 43015, specifies the manner in which and 
procedures to be used pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 3735 authorizing general 
compensation relating to the Community Reinvestment Area tax abatement for 
the renovation of a building at 38 E. Winter St. in Delaware’s Community 
Reinvestment Area #141-1135-01. 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Reinvestment Program, pursuant to Chapter 3735 
of the Ohio Revised Code authorizes cities and counties to grant real property 
tax exemptions on eligible new investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City Council of Delaware, Ohio, by Resolution 
No. 01-52, adopted July 23, 2001, designated the area as a “Community 
Reinvestment Area” pursuant to Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective September 4, 2001, the Director of Development of the 
State of Ohio determined that the aforementioned area designated in said 
Resolution No. 01-52 contains the characteristics set forth in Section 3735.66 
of the Ohio Revised Code and confirmed said area as Community Reinvestment 
Area #141-1135-01 under said Chapter 3735; and 
 
Whereas, effective November 26, 2001, a Delaware City School District Board of 
Education resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to 
negotiate, approve, and define terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive 
Agreement; the minutes of the May 2, 2017 Tax Incentive Negotiating 
Committee document the Superintendent’s approval; and 
 
Whereas, effective April 15, 2004, a Delaware Area Career Center Board of 
Education resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to 
negotiate, approve, and define terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive 
Agreement; the minutes of the June 29, 2017, Tax Incentive Negotiating 
Committee document the Superintendent’s approval; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Delaware within Ordinance Number 17-__ adopted on 
____________, 2017, has acted pursuant to ORC 3735 to grant a tax exemption 
to 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC., and entered into a formal Community 
Reinvestment Area abatement agreement on _________, 2017; and 



 2 

 
Whereas, Item 3(a) of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement relating to 
the aforementioned project requires compensation to the Delaware City School 
District and Delaware Area Career Center for the sole benefit of educational 
initiatives. 
 
Now therefore, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises, 
covenants, and agreements hereinafter set forth by the City of Delaware, 
Delaware City School District, Delaware Area Career Center and 2nd HALF 
VENTURES, LLC, agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC, shall pay ONE-THOUSAND ONE 
HUNDREN AND SEVENTY DOLLARS AND FOUR CENTS ($1,170.04) per year 
for fifteen (15) years to the Delaware City School District and Delaware Area 
Career Center in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Item 
3(a) of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement for the referenced project. 
This payment shall be made upon receipt of invoices per the instructions set 
forth in Item 3(a) of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement relating to 
the aforementioned project, and the first payment shall be due September 30, 
2020 and dispersed per Section 2 of this agreement. 
 
Section 2. The cash payments made by 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC., to the 
Delaware City School District and Delaware Area Career Center satisfies ORC 
Section 5709.82C(2) (School Compensation Agreement is mutually 
acceptable) and shall be used for educational initiatives for the sole benefit of 
the Delaware City Schools and the Delaware Area Career Center, as follows: 
 
 a. Delaware City School District  $1,122.43 
 b. Delaware Area Career Center  $47.61 
 c. Total      $1,170.04  
 
Section 3. This agreement may be amended or modified by the parties, only in 
writing, signed by all parties to the agreement or by applicable law changes. 
 
Note: All parties agree that if Ohio tax reform results in no net tax 
incentive benefits (if the sum of tax incentives offered through the 
Community Reinvestment Area Agreement minus the school 
compensation payment is negative), 2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC may 
request that the City of Delaware Tax Incentive Review Council 
recommend agreement modification or termination.  No School 
Compensation payment is required if there is no net tax benefit to 2nd 
HALF VENTURES, LLC. 
 
Section 4. This agreement sets forth the entire agreement and understanding 
between the parties as to the subject matter contained herein and merges and 



 3 

supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, and undertakings of every kind 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this agreement. 
 
Section 5. All payments, certificates, reports, and notices which are required 
to or may be given pursuant to the provisions of this agreement shall be sent 
by regular mail, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed to have been given or 
delivered when so mailed to the following addresses: 
 

R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
City of Delaware 
1 South Sandusky Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 

 
     Paul A. Craft, PhD, Superintendent 
     Delaware City School District 
     74 W. William St. 
     Delaware, Ohio 43015 
 
     Mary Beth Freeman, Superintendent 
     Delaware Area Career Center 
     4565 Columbus Pike 
     Delaware, Ohio 43015 
 
     David DiStefano, Owner 
     2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC    
     PO BOX 648 
     Delaware, OH 43015 
 
 
Any party may change its contact or mailing address for receiving notices and 
reports by giving written notice of such change to the other parties. 
 
Section 7. The invalidity of any provision of this agreement shall not affect the 
other provisions of this agreement, and this agreement shall be construed in all 
respects as if any invalid portions were omitted. 
 
In witness whereof, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as 
of this __ day of _____ 2017. 
 
 
CITY OF DELAWARE 
 
 
          __________________________________________ 
           R. Thomas Homan 
 



 4 

 
 
DELAWARE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
        
  Paul A. Craft, Superintendent 
 
 
DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER 
 
 
        
  Mary Beth Freeman, Superintendent 
 
 
2nd HALF VENTURES, LLC. 
   
                  
  David DiStefano, Owner 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________________ 
      Darren Shulman, Delaware City Attorney 
 
 



0 30 6015
ft

Delaware County Auditor
George Kaitsa

Information contained within this map may be used to generally locate, identify and inventory land parcels within Delaware County. 
Delaware County cannot warrant or guarantee the information contained herein, including, but not limited to its accuracy 

or  completeness. The map parcel l ines shown are approximate and this information cannot be constructed or  used as a "legal description" of a parcel.
Flood Plain information is obtained from FEMA and is administered by the Delaware County Building Department (740-833-2201).

Please report any errors or omissions to the Delaware County Auditor's office at delcogis@co.delaware.oh.us.
Prepared by: Delaware County Auditor's GIS Office

/
14 W William - 2nd Half Ventures CRA

Printed o n 7/17/2017



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-54    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       AUGUST 14, 2017 AT 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO 
B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 
APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND 
JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-54 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU 
(COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK 
COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN 
CHASE SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Treplus Communities 
from B-3 (Community Business District) to B-3 PMU (Community Business 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons 
containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the 
north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of 
Lantern Chase Subdivision (2017-1394). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment Rezoning Amendment for 
Treplus Communities from B-3 (Community Business District) to B-3 PMU 
(Community Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for 
Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 
acres located on the north side of SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center 
and just east of Lantern Chase Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 



 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 20    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-55    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       AUGUST 14, 2017 AT 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS 
CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-55 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK 
COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD 
SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN 
CHASE SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 
92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of 
SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision (2017-1395).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) for Burr Oak Commons containing 
92 apartment units on approximately 20.06 acres located on the north side of 
SR 37 just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  21    DATE: 07/24/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-56    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS 
CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES 
ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING CENTER AND JUST EAST OF 
LANTERN CHASE SUBDIVISION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1129 Procedures of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on July 19, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-56 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 
APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 
ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
SR 37 JUST WEST OF WESTFIELD SHOPPING 
CENTER AND JUST EAST OF LANTERN CHASE 
SUBDIVISION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of July 19, 2017 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for Treplus 
Communities for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on 
approximately 20.06 acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 
just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision (2017-1396). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Preliminary Development Plan for Treplus 
Communities for Burr Oak Commons containing 92 apartment units on 
approximately 20.06 acres zoned B-3 PMU (Community Business District with 
a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of SR 37 
just west of Westfield Shopping Center and just east of Lantern Chase 
Subdivision, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. A sidewalk shall be located on one side of the private streets as 
determined with the Final Development Plan. 

3. The City shall require the developer to construct and dedicate the bike 
path along the frontage of the subject property along SR 37 per the 



adopted Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2017 and City Engineers 
requirements.   

4. The proposed apartment buildings shall achieve compliance with the 
design standards of the approved development text.  

5. The perimeter buffering along the northern and western property lines 
adjacent to the single family homes shall be a minimum 12 foot high 
continuous buffer consisting of evergreen trees (in a staggered 
alignment) and a 4 foot high earthen mound to buffer the single family 
residents to the north and west.  If the mound height is greater than 4 
feet, the trees on that portion of the mound may be smaller so long as 
the total is at least 12 feet high. However, in no case shall a tree be 
less than 6 feet in height regardless of mound height.  

6. The Tree Preservation Regulations in Chapter 1168 pertaining to tree 
replacement and preservation shall be addressed prior to or 
concurrent with the Final Development Plan approval. 

7. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade 
Tree Commission. 

8. A lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 

9. The exact location, size and materials of the monument signs shall be 
documented on the Final Development Plan. 

10. The Public Works Department shall provide residential pick-up 
service to this project using individual tip cart collection. The trash 
service will consist of tip carts picked up at the bottom of each 
driveway with service provided by the City of Delaware. In the event 
units are clustered around parking courts (3 such area are 
preliminary proposed), the developer shall provide a common concrete 
area adjacent to the primary street and the developer (or management 
company) shall ensure the tip carts are moved to this area for the 
designated pick up as with the other units and then moved back to 
the units themselves. 

11. The developer shall achieve compliance with City emergency access 
requirements prior to Final Development Plan approval.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: July 20, 2017

Reports Included

Page  Reports

2 Revenues by Source

3 General Fund

Purpose

This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2017 to 2016 by source. 
Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

 balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

 non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

8 Recreation Levy Summary Reflects 2017 and total Recreation Levy expenditures by Phase.

Highlights:

* Income tax collections year-to-date are 3.83% above 2016 levels.  The budget projected increase 6.5%. 

 If the collection rate holds through the remainder of the year the General Fund tax collections will be 

 $350,000 below the budget estimate.

* Engineering Fee reimbursements in the General Fund are up $700k over last year's amount.  An additional

 appropriation is proposed to increase the expenditures associated with this reimbursement.

* Other development related revenues, impact fees, capacity fees are down 19.4% compared to 2016.

* Most expenditures are in line with mid-year budget estimates.

YTD 2017 Budget Supplementals

17-17 $9,333 - General Fund - Refund fire insurance bond 

17-31  $14,000 - Project Trust Fund - Springfield Trail/Howald

17-36  $60,000 - General Bond Retirement Fund, $36,000 Water Fund, $10,000 Sewer Bond Fund - Bond issuance

    costs.

17-37  $175,000 - General Fund - Comrehensive Plan 

17-39  $5,000 - General Fund - AEP industrial park sign replacement

17-40 $50,000 - General Fund - Engineering Wages

JUNE FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
REVENUES BY SOURCE

June 30, 2017
Revenues Revenues  
@ 6/30/17 @ 6/30/16 % Change

TAXES
Income Tax 14,717,391$          14,174,168$          3.83%

 Property Tax 912,355                 979,176                 -6.82%
Local Government Fund 293,810                 297,990                 -1.40%
Hotel/Motel Tax 31,869                   33,664                   -5.33%
Gasoline Taxes 560,669                 555,544                 0.92%
License Plate Tax 335,910                 334,084                 0.55%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 184,045$               177,024$               3.97%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 44,169                   45,706                   -3.36%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 72,047                   74,462                   -3.24%
Impact Fees 266,508                 437,706                 -39.11%
Airport - Fuel 243,299                 182,108                 33.60%
Cemetery 82,956                   69,403                   19.53%
Golf Course 86,188                   86,642                   -0.52%

REIMBURSEMENTS
Engineering Fees 1,328,629$            629,176$               111.17%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 682,041                 67,389                   912.10%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 150,625                 126,518                 19.05%
Building Permits and Fees 390,859                 431,367                 -9.39%

UTILITY CHARGES   
Water  -  Meter Charges 2,585,951$            2,500,644$            3.41%
           -  Capacity Fees 748,908                 858,291                 -12.74%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 3,146,232              3,084,093              2.01%
           -  Capacity Fees 723,206                 815,451                 -11.31%
Refuse 1,752,846              1,702,502              2.96%
Storm Sewer 425,440                 427,247                 -0.42%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 1,796,259$            1,724,550$            4.16%

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
GENERAL FUND REVENUES

June 30, 2017
June 50.0% of year Comparative

Revenues 2017 Revenues As Revenues % Change
6/30/2017 Budget % of Budget 6/30/2016 YTD

GENERAL FUND
Property Tax 706,401 1,522,000 46.41% 753,780 (6.29%)

City Income Tax 7,960,639 14,391,065 55.32% 7,667,176 3.83%

Other Taxes 1,013 0 0.00% 1,112 0.00%

Local Government Fund 293,810 617,500 47.58% 297,990 (1.40%)

Fines and Forfeitures 72,047 145,000 49.69% 74,462 (3.24%)
Engineering Fees 1,328,629 810,000 164.03% 629,176 111.17%

Prosecutor Contracts 150,625 260,000 57.93% 126,518 19.05%

Parking Meters 17,945 37,000 48.50% 19,587 (8.38%)

Other Fees and Contracts 12,484 0 0.00% 18,040 (30.80%)

Liquor Permits 39,488 45,000 87.75% 37,229 6.07%

Franchise Fees 184,045 355,000 51.84% 177,024 3.97%

Licenses & Permits 390,859 725,000 53.91% 431,367 (9.39%)

Investment Income 119,306 175,000 68.17% 51,668 130.91%

Miscellaneous 30,716 150,000 20.48% 60,099 (48.89%)

Reimbursements 78,999 168,000 47.02% 50,743 55.68%

Transfers 918,056 1,920,000 47.82% 901,235 1.87%

TOTAL 12,305,062 21,320,565 57.71% 11,297,206 8.92%

 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
Comparative

Expenses 2017 Expenses As Expenses % Change
6/30/2017 Budget % of Budget 6/30/2016 YTD

GENERAL FUND
City Council 62,239 151,797 41.00% 41,479 50.05%

City Manager 362,803 684,160 53.03% 364,052 (0.34%)

Human Resources 155,522 349,298 44.52% 125,881 23.55%

Economic Development 230,830 388,834 59.36% 187,923 22.83%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 385,848 797,760 48.37% 389,170 (0.85%)

Finance 739,133 1,551,135 47.65% 706,038 4.69%

Income Tax Refunds 334,724 360,000 92.98% 298,714 12.06%

General Administration 2,898,748 5,684,387 50.99% 2,390,748 21.25%

Risk Management 2,178 332,900 0.65% 9,628 (77.38%)

Police 3,975,426 8,173,369 48.64% 3,742,602 6.22%

Planning 508,364 1,136,486 44.73% 488,352 4.10%

Engineering 709,389 1,485,329 47.76% 622,625 13.94%

City Buildings 214,554 478,763 44.81% 195,704 9.63%

TOTAL 10,579,758 21,574,218 49.04% 9,562,916 10.63%

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2017 4,382,218           

 2017 General Fund Revenues 12,305,062       

 2017 General Fund Expenditures (10,579,758)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 6/30/17 (342,756)            

General Fund Ending Fund Balance June 30,2017 5,764,766        

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER OPERATING FUNDs

June 30, 2017
 

REVENUES
Comparative

Revenues 2017 Revenues As Revenues % Change
6/30/2017 Budget % of Budget 6/30/2016 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,420,170 2,806,691 50.60% 1,351,297 5.10%

STORM SEWER 426,032 852,000 50.00% 428,023 (0.47%)

PARKS AND RECREATION 809,866 1,427,500 56.73% 650,813 24.44%

CEMETERY 120,455 212,500 56.68% 89,401 34.74%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 335,919 711,218 47.23% 277,615 21.00%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,353,512 14,940,746 62.60% 5,535,999 68.96%

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,286,519 2,736,750 47.01% 1,241,486 3.63%

GOLF COURSE 86,188 173,700 49.62% 86,642 (0.52%)

WATER 2,925,499 5,650,132 51.78% 2,663,949 9.82%

SEWER 3,364,385 7,180,000 46.86% 3,246,541 3.63%

REFUSE 1,775,230 3,588,500 49.47% 1,718,294 3.31%

GARAGE ROTARY 322,720 645,440 50.00% 301,554 7.02%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 526,425 1,052,850 50.00% 468,465 12.37%

TOTAL 22,752,920 41,978,027 54.20% 18,060,079 25.98%

 

 EXPENDITURES   

Comparative
Expenditures 2017 Expenses As Expenses % Change

6/30/2017 Budget % of Budget 6/30/2016 YTD
STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,316,625 2,924,173 45.03% 1,153,406 14.15%

STORM SEWER 671,867 1,542,458 43.56% 290,110 131.59%

PARKS AND RECREATION 644,389 1,393,719 46.24% 612,382 5.23%

CEMETERY 135,680 411,281 32.99% 115,046 17.94%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 298,029 801,551 37.18% 289,601 2.91%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 4,585,420 14,111,551 32.49% 5,136,288 (10.73%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,234,457 2,641,901 46.73% 1,198,605 2.99%

GOLF COURSE 84,926 200,014 42.46% 83,323 1.92%

WATER OPERATIONS 2,982,176 5,939,211 50.21% 2,884,413 3.39%

SEWER OPERATIONS 3,472,965 7,391,675 46.98% 2,783,980 24.75%

REFUSE 1,613,661 5,370,832 30.04% 1,712,381 (5.77%)

GARAGE ROTARY 287,847 643,633 44.72% 303,227 (5.07%)

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 459,132 1,053,120 43.60% 408,690 12.34%

TOTAL 17,787,174 44,425,119 40.04% 16,971,452 4.81%

 

FUND BALANCES
Fund Fund

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance
1/1/2017 6/30/2017 6/30/2017 Encumb. 6/30/2017

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 442,970 1,420,170 1,316,625 113,102 433,413

STORM SEWER 1,921,698 426,032 671,867 159,665 1,516,198

PARKS AND RECREATION 232,381 809,866 644,389 126,615 271,243

CEMETERY 299,378 120,455 135,680 14,934 269,219

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 232,295 335,919 298,029 88,528 181,657

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 5,637,179 9,853,512 4,585,420 288,235 10,617,036

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,881,840 1,286,519 1,234,457 6,898 1,927,004

GOLF COURSE 69,962 86,188 84,926 11,241 59,983

WATER OPERATIONS 1,421,338 2,925,499 2,982,176 198,053 1,166,608

SEWER OPERATIONS 2,661,859 3,364,385 3,472,965 162,975 2,390,304

REFUSE 2,185,719 1,775,230 1,613,661 413,929 1,933,359

GARAGE ROTARY 273,429 322,720 287,847 68,382 239,920

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 561,103 526,425 459,132 63,747 564,649

TOTAL 17,821,151 23,252,920 17,787,174 1,716,304 21,570,593
4



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

June 30, 2017
Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund
Balance 6/30/2017 6/30/2017 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 106,060 52,251 0 0 158,311

LICENSE FEE 223,448 207,285 0 0 430,733

TREE FUND 211,030 81,851 50,000 0 242,881

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR 143,529 47,730 39,570 0 151,689

RECREATION FACILITIES TAX 3,530,990 1,206,219 705,693 73,724 3,957,792

AIRPORT TIF 57,415 12,501 0 0 69,916

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF 1,463,310 460,786 53,249 189,062 1,681,785

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 9,796 9,796 40,204 (40,204)

MILL RUN TIF 0 72,581 72,581 87,419 (87,419)

COURT IDIAM 18,784 8,315 18,137 4,494 4,468

DRUG ENFORCEMENT 54,013 2,771 140 0 56,644

COURT ALCOHOL TREATMENT 516,519 47,765 10,790 0 553,494

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 4,036 1,097 0 0 5,133

POLICE JUDGEMENT 114,881 20,659 18,676 10,000 106,864

PARK DEVELOPMENT 205,177 26,808 0 0 231,985

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH 486,966 150,282 29,826 15,134 592,288

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS 865,397 148,888 24,393 31,720 958,172

PROBATION SERVICES 451,587 153,393 12,428 13,501 579,051

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY 0 205,953 205,953 0 0

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 45,497 41,994 54,874 41,890 (9,273)

CDBG GRANT 2,530 0 492 0 2,038

ED REVOLVING LOAN 478,274 54,612 32,897 79,774 420,215

HOUSING GRANT PROGRAM INCOME 27,018 0 14,400 12,618 0

CHIP GRANT (62,267) 166,636 119,703 27,853 (43,187)

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 72,367 1,752,278 1,491,919 0 332,726

PARK IMPROV BONDS FUND 107,796 648,542 376,451 0 379,887

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 83,023 499,173 295,386 0 286,810

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1,408,850 1,119,590 771,099 776,905 980,436

FAA AIRPORT GRANT (374,800) 362,892 19,485 37,600 (68,993)

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT (406,370) 428,897 25,000 0 (2,473)

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 199,822 455,000 404,848 163,066 86,908

PARK IMPACT FEE 1,082,919 159,715 86,271 287,133 869,230

POLICE IMPACT FEE 334,055 22,296 18,545 880 336,926

FIRE IMPACT FEE 330,732 42,816 19,564 886 353,098

MUNICIPAL SERVICES IMPACT FEE 535,122 49,895 33,064 886 551,067

GLENN ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUNDS 3,486,736 10,957,481 11,384,158 17,792 3,042,267

PARKING LOTS 28,666 26,224 18,189 0 36,701

WATER CIP 9,903,611 4,061,599 4,886,044 107,821 8,971,345

SEWER CIP 6,835,942 3,691,710 4,323,893 197,683 6,006,076

SELF INSURANCE 2,216,317 2,451,036 2,762,902 11,752 1,892,699

WORKERS COMP RESERVE 1,973,888 288,600 155,423 6,505 2,100,560

FIRE DONATION 5,765 580 0 0 6,345

PARK DONATION 25,000 0 0 0 25,000

POLICE DONATION 7,809 40 0 0 7,849

MAYOR'S DONATION 1,958 800 1,243 35 1,480

PROJECT TRUST 560,120 4,195 9,209 2,291 552,815

UNCLAIMED FUNDS 68,119 1,902 0 0 70,021

DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 807,886 0 0 0 807,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,012,323 0 0 0 1,012,323

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 32,427 116,362 81,103 118,897 (51,211)

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 36,063 126 879 0 35,310

STATE PATROL TRANSFER 252 32,670 32,670 0 252

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEES 474 3,471 3,253 0 692
PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 164,146 0 0 0 164,146

TOTAL 39,485,212 30,358,063 28,674,196 2,357,525 38,811,554

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

 June 30, 2017
 

June YTD 2017 % of YTD % Change

Account 2017 2017 Budget Budget 2016 2016-17

Life Insurance 2,333$            13,904$          29,000$          47.9% 13,618$         2.1%

Insurance Opt-Out 2,595               15,070            30,500            49.4% 13,370           12.7%

Preventative Care 1,993               17,468            45,000            38.8% 18,131           -3.7%

Vision Coverage 2,060               6,697               13,600            49.2% -                 0.0%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax -                   -                   40,000            0.0% 1,632             0.0%

 TPA Fees 8,687               48,105            86,000            55.9% 39,950           20.4%

 PPO Fees 3,710               21,896            46,000            47.6% 21,182           3.4%
 Broker Fees -                   -                   7,000               0.0% 3,026             -100.0%

  Total Admin 12,397            70,001            179,000          39.1% 65,790           6.4%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 53,603            319,549          620,000          51.5% 256,625         24.5%

Claims  

 Medical 296,295          1,816,002       3,400,000       53.4% 1,442,634      25.9%

 Dental 16,783            130,499          300,000          43.5% 111,911         16.6%

 Prescription 57,015            373,712          715,000          52.3% 300,268         24.5%

  Total Claims 370,093          2,320,213       4,415,000       52.6% 1,854,813      25.1%

Total Costs 445,074          2,762,902       5,332,100       51.8% 2,222,347      24.3%

Employee Payment 69,271            426,214          820,000          52.0% 383,611         

Reimbursements 13,874            81,960            300,000          27.3% 130,006          

NET PLAN COSTS 361,929$        2,254,728$    4,212,100$    53.5% 1,708,730$    32.0%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 
2015-2017

 2015    2016    2017   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,386,435 325,735 145,382 1,857,552 1,433,007 317,649 37,649 1,788,305 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614

FEBRUARY 1,374,902 315,054 84,287 1,774,243 2,161,101 396,158 52,085 2,609,344 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569

MARCH 1,122,427 601,839 98,726 1,822,992 1,237,708 545,907 234,748 2,018,363 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062

APRIL 1,299,084 2,094,760 670,933 4,064,777 1,481,257 2,185,373 575,354 4,241,984 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915

MAY 1,283,212 133,840 38,214 1,455,266 1,390,669 153,006 33,392 1,577,067 1,388,195       185,269        50,869          1,624,333

JUNE 1,255,611 146,124 199,120 1,600,855 1,267,769 426,520 238,738 1,933,027 1,284,197       481,309        167,392        1,932,898

SUBTOTAL 7,721,671 3,617,352 1,236,662 12,575,685 55.03% 8,971,511 4,024,613 1,171,966 14,168,090 56.73% 8,733,578 4,177,591 1,806,222 14,717,391 55.30%

JULY 1,426,574 318,033 55,623 1,800,230 1,426,206 146,332 33,356 1,605,894

AUGUST 1,379,035 213,566 22,758 1,615,359 1,470,975 140,043 25,584 1,636,602

SEPTEMBER 1,219,497 194,176 224,009 1,637,682 1,167,550 523,048 257,476 1,948,074

OCTOBER 1,258,135 403,492 95,560 1,757,187 1,760,852 262,154 134,880 2,157,886

NOVEMBER 1,437,276 240,304 53,785 1,731,365 1,283,667 213,128 13,244 1,510,039

DECEMBER 1,294,296 274,186 166,753 1,735,235 1,296,162 420,091 232,478 1,948,731  

   

  TOTALS 15,736,484 5,261,109 1,855,150 22,852,743 102.12% 17,376,923 5,729,409 1,868,984 24,975,316 104.09% 8,733,578 4,177,591 1,806,222 14,717,391 55.30%

   

  BUDGETED 22,378,779 23,993,421 26,614,811

     Budgeted Increase % 6.56%

Total Jan-April  % of Annual  

Receipts Receipts  Collections $14,717,391 

2007 12,865,504 7,013,529 54.51%

2008 14,159,170 8,020,285 56.64%   HIGH = 54.51% $26,997,344 

2009 14,719,896 8,110,427 55.10%   LOW = 56.73% $25,943,616 

2010 15,185,348 8,434,378 55.54%

2011 17,765,717 9,810,969 55.22%   LAST 3 YR 

2012 19,658,101 10,940,918 55.66%   AVG   = 55.95% $26,302,676 

2013 20,557,766 11,367,457 55.30%

2014 21,537,420 12,083,423 56.10% *2017 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $26,614,811 

2015 22,852,743 12,575,685 55.03%

2016 24,975,316 14,168,090 56.73%

10 Year Avg. 55.58%

Projection based on ten year trend

JAN-JUNE 2017 RECEIPTS =

7



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

RECREATION LEVY

June 30,  2017

2017 Total

2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 Remaining 2014 - 

Description Expended Expended Expended Expended Encumbered Budget 2017

Phase 1 - $20,000,000 
233-0233- 5230 Design 7,090 0 0 0 0 0 7,090

5513 Other Park Improvements 14,981 0 0 0 0 0 14,981

5521 National Guard City Alternatives 117,500 0 0 0 0 0 117,500

5533 Veterans Park Restroom/Shelter 0 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 250,000

  Total 139,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 389,571

Phase 2 - $3,800,000
233-0233- 5522 Park Asphalt Projects 306,291 59,111 27,841 0 0 0 393,243

5523 Park Seal Coating Projects 36,025 100,894 0 0 0 30,000 166,919

5524 Smith Park Trail 27,461 3,699 205,818 0 0 0 236,978

5525 Park Irrigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5526 Park Aeration 20,109 0 0 0 0 286,000 306,109

5527 Parks General Construction Projects 113,737 6,250 12,645 0 0 157,581 290,213

5528 Dog Park 32,354 34,003 0 0 0 0 66,357

5529 Drainage & Excavation Projects 2,608 0 0 0 0 18,000 20,608

5530 Miscellaneous Park Improvements 42,715 0 0 0 0 25,000 67,715

5531 Veterans Park Parking Lot Addition 337,203 0 0 0 0 0 337,203

5532 Wayfinding and Signage 0 0 0 8,500 15,250 0 23,750

5534 Veterans Park Playtoy 0 152,551 94,449 0 58,474 -58,474 247,000

5535 Splashpad Construction 5,300 479,956 51,627 0 0 0 536,883

5536 Parkland Acquisition/Improvement 0 722,272 428,577 0 0 0 1,150,849

5537 Park Improvements Contingency 3,040 0 0 0 0 0 3,040

5538 Pickleball Courts 0 17,035 0 0 0 0 17,035

5710 In House Design 0 4,237 0 0 0 0 4,237

  Total 926,843 1,580,008 820,957 8,500 73,724 458,107 3,868,139

Phase 1 Totals 139,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 389,571

  Phase 1 Reimbursements 72,000 72,000

Phase 1 Net Cost 67,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 317,571

Phase 1 Net Cost 2009-2013  19,609,505

    TOTAL PHASE 1 COSTS 19,927,076

Phase 2 Totals 926,843 1,580,008 820,957 8,500 73,724 458,107 3,868,139

  Phase 2 Reimbursements 212,722 212,722

    TOTAL PHASE 2 COSTS 926,843 1,367,286 820,957 8,500 73,724 458,107 3,655,417

TOTAL ALL PHASES 23,582,493

Account #

8



City Manager Report 20170724 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: July 24, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
  June 20 

* Strand Board Meeting 
June 26 
* First Commonwealth Bank Reception 
* Rotary 
* Council 
June 29 
* JEDD Board Meeting 
* Main Street Delaware Ambiance Award 
July 10 
* Rotary 
July 11 
* Sister City Advisory Board Meeting 
* MORPC 
July 17 
* Rotary 
* Stand Board Meeting 

 
4. Required Reading 
 Bulk Item Collection Program Update 
 2016 Annual Impact Fee Report 
  
 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

      1 
2 3 4 

City Offices 
Closed 

5 
Planning 
Commission 
moved to July 19 

6 7 8 

9 10 
Council  

11 
Civil Service 
Commission 3 pm 
Sister City 6pm  
Public Works 
Public Utilities- 
canceled 

12 
BZA-Canceled 

13 14 15 

16 17 18 
Parks & Rec Bd 
7pm-Canceled 

19 
Planning 
Commission 7pm 

20 
Airport 
Commission 7pm 

21 22 

23 24 
Council 

25 
Shade Tree 7pm 

26 
HPC 7pm 

27 28 29 
30 31      

 

2017 

Ju
ly

 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

  1 2 
Civil Service 
Commission 3pm 
Planning 7 pm 

3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 
BZA 7pm 

10 11 12 
13 14 

Council 7pm 

15 
Parks & Rec Bd 
7pm 

16 
Finance 1:00 pm 

17 18 19 

20 21 
Parking & Safety 
7pm  

22 
Shade Tree-7pm 

23 
HPC-7pm 

24 25 26 

27 28 
Council 7pm 

29 30 31   

       

 
2017 

A
ug

us
t 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – July 24, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
HDR Engineering Engineering services for sanitary 

sewer modeling for sewer capacity 
$10,000.00 Public Utilities 

CHA Consultants Task Order #16 Taxiway A 
Construction Services 

$71,020.00 Public Works 

ODOT Land lease from ODOT for land 
adjacent to the Justice Center 

$2,000/yr Public Works 

Columbus Asphalt Paving, Inc. West Central Ave. Sidewalk 
Improvement Project 

$149,723.10 Public Works 

URETEK USA Inc. US 23/ US 42 Emergency Culvert 
Repairs 

$137,200.00 Public Works 

     



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
TO: R Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 Delaware City Council 

 
FROM: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

 DATE:  July 24, 2017 
  
 
RE: Bulk Item Refuse Collection – Pilot Program Update 

 

The bulk item refuse collection program began in May with the first scheduled collection date 
occurring on Tuesday, May 9th.  Public demand for the service was initially very high necessitating a 
second collection date be scheduled, that was subsequently performed on Tuesday, May 23nd.  Two 
collection dates were similarly held in June, and will be planned for July as well.  The public 
response has been very favorable of this service with many comments noting the convenience, 
safety and reliability of the new service.  Residents have been willing to make payments in person 
at the Public Works facility as currently required without complaint.  Three scheduled pick-ups 
resulted in refunds as the resident found alternate means to dispose of their items. 
   
As of the July 11th collection, the pilot program serviced 134 stops collecting a variety of items 
including appliances, furniture and other large household items.   Appliances have been delivered 
to the Sims Recycling Center on London Road where the City receives a nominal payment for the 
value of recyclable materials.   Remaining items are collected via rear load packer, and taken to the 
County Transfer Station.  The table below summarizes the pilot program success to date. 
 

Date No. 
Stops 

Total 
items 

Man 
Hours 

Labor & 
Equipment 

Cost 

Net 
Disposal 

Cost 

Fees 
Received 

Cost per 
Stop 

May 9th 36 75 19 $1204.79 $157.82 $927.15 $37.85 
June 13th 32 98 14.5 $919.45 $162.35 $778.84 $33.81 
June 27th 34 69 14 $887.74 $162.91 $767.50 $30.90 
July 11th 32 70 13 $824.33 $165.74 $816.79 $30.94 

        
Totals 134 312 60.5 $3836.31 $648.82 $3290.28  

 
It is anticipated that demand for the program will remain high and continued service should be 
extended though the year.  An option currently under evaluation is implementation of twice per 
month pick-up from March through October, and then monthly over the winter months.   Additional 
consideration may be given to including the service cost within the monthly rates instead of the 
current per stop service fee in practice.  Final recommendations will be presented in the one-year 
pilot project report due in April 2018. 


















	01 20170724 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20170624 council minutes
	03 201705823 shade tree minutes
	04 20170524 hpc minutes
	05 20170503 civil service minutes
	06 20170607 planning minutes
	07 fact sheet res 17-42, committee appts
	08 res 17-42,  committee appoints NCA
	09 res 17-42, nca letters
	10 fact Sheet Res 17-43 OPWC Rd 32
	11 res 17-43, OPWC Rd 32 Application
	12 res 17-43, Exhibit 1
	13 fact sheet res 17-44, County Coop Agmt OPWC 32
	14 res 17-44, OPWC Rd 32 County Agmt
	15 fact sheet res 17-45,  Insight2050
	16 res 17-45,  Insight2050 application
	17 Greater Gouda Liqour Permit
	18 Greater Gouda Report
	19 fact sheet res 17-46 , eastside park renaming
	20 res 17-46 , eastside park renaming
	21 Letter of permission-Bennet
	22 Nomination of Dick Bennett Park
	22 res 17-29 park naming policy
	23 fact sheet res 17-47, indigent defense services
	24 res 17-47, indigent defense services with county
	25 res 17-47, REDLINE Municipal PD
	26 Fact Sheet Res 17-48 The Point Blanket Agreements
	27 Res 17-48 The Point Blanket Agreements
	28 Point Project Funding
	29 MORPC Agreement-point
	30 fact sheet res 17-49, Citywide Signals morpc agreement
	31 res 17-49, Citywide Signals morpc Agreements
	32 Signal Funding
	33 MORPC Agreement-signals
	34 fact sheet ord 17-50, supplemental land dev
	35 ord 17-50, Supplemental appropriation land dev
	36 2017 land dev and ROW attach
	37 fact sheet ord 17-51 appr sale of recycling truck-#454
	38 ord 17-51,  sale of recycling truck-#454
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____

	39 fact sheet ord 17-52 , Berkshire NCA Proximate City
	40 ord 17-52 , Berkshire NCA Proximate City
	41 ord 17-52, berkshire landing nca executive summ and petition
	42 berkshire parcel map
	43 COLUMBUS-#5611880-v1-Map_of_Existing_Property-c-c
	44 fact sheet ord 17-53, 2nd half ventures CRA
	45 ord  17-53, 2ndHalfVentures CRA and School Comp
	ABSTAIN ____

	46 2ndhalfventures_School Notification Letter
	3735.671 Written agreement where commercial or industrial property is to be exempted.

	47 DiStefanoIncentiveapplication
	48 CRA Agreement 2ndHalfVentures Ballard edits
	Sub Total Real Property
	Total Real Property
	Total Investment


	49 2ndHALF Ventures_School Comp_2017
	50 ord 17- 53, map 14WWilliam_2ndHalfVenturesCRA
	51 fact sheet ord 17-54, rezoning Burr Oak Commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON A...

	52 ord 17-54 , rezone amend burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FROM B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON A...

	53 2017-1394-1396 PC Treplus Communities-Burr Oak
	54 fact sheet ord 17-55, CUP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SI...

	55 ord 17-55 , CUP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU  (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SI...

	56 fact sheet ord 17-56, PDP burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) A...

	57 ord 17-56, pdp burr oak commons
	AN ORDINANCE FOR TREPLUS COMMUNITIES FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURR OAK COMMONS CONTAINING 92 APARTMENT UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 20.06 ACRES ZONED B-3 PMU (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) A...

	58 June 2017
	59 city managers report 20170724
	60 march-december
	61 20170724 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – July 24, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Public Utilities
	$10,000.00
	HDR Engineering
	Engineering services for sanitary sewer modeling for sewer capacity

	Public Works
	$71,020.00
	CHA Consultants
	Task Order #16 Taxiway A Construction Services

	Public Works
	$2,000/yr
	ODOT
	Land lease from ODOT for land adjacent to the Justice Center

	Public Works
	$149,723.10
	Columbus Asphalt Paving, Inc.
	West Central Ave. Sidewalk Improvement Project

	Public Works
	$137,200.00
	URETEK USA Inc.
	US 23/ US 42 Emergency Culvert Repairs


	62 Bulk Item Collection Program Update 7.3.17
	63 2016 Impact Fee Annual Report-required reading

